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DIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDER S

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an Annual and Speciakkting (the "Meeting") of holders of
common shares (“Shares”) of Digifonica Internatidna. (the "Corporation") will be held on Friday
February 25, 2011 at 11:00 a.m. (Vancouver tim@&ats Inn, 921 West Pender Street Vancouver,
British Columbia, V6C 1M2 for the following purpase

1. to receive and consider the audited finant@kments of the Corporation for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2009, together with the repbttee auditors thereon;

2. to elect the board of directors of the Corgorafor the ensuing year;

3. to re-appoint HLB Cinnamon Jang Willoughby &many as the auditors of the Corporation for
the ensuing year and to authorize the board o€fdire of the Corporation to determine the
remuneration to be paid to the auditors;

4, to consider and, if deemed advisable, to pagsecial resolution, the full text of which is set
forth in the accompanying Management Proxy Cirgutaconsolidate Shares of the Corporation
on a ratio of one new consolidated Share for upriccurrent shares in the discretion of the
directors and to change the name of the Corporédianame selected by the directors;

5. To approve a change of business and a charte ahdertaking of the Corporation;

0. to consider and, if deemed advisable, to passdinary resolution, the full text of which istse
forth in the accompanying Management Proxy Circulaifying, adopting and re-approving the
stock option plan of the Corporation and authogaime Corporation's board of directors to make
any amendments thereto that may be required fgouhgose of obtaining the approval of
applicable securities regulatory authorities ocktexchanges;

7. To approve stock options granted in the ensyéag to the directors, officers, insiders and
consultants on terms acceptable to the TSX Verfixolhange and in accordance with the
Corporation’s stock option plan.

8. to transact such other business as may benhropmught before the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

Information relating to matters to be acted uponhgyshareholders at the Meeting is set forthén th
accompanying Management Proxy Circular.

A shareholder may attend the Meeting in personay be represented at the Meeting by proxy.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meatipgrison and wish to be represented by proxy are
requested to date, sign and return the accompaystigiment of Proxy, or other appropriate form of
proxy, in accordance with the instructions sethfantthe accompanying Management Proxy Circular and
Instrument of Proxy. An Instrument of Proxy withtrbe valid unless it is deposited at the offices o
Olympia Trust Company at Suite 2300, 125" A¥enue S.E., Calgary, Alberta T2G 0P8, in the eset



self-addressed envelope or faxed to (403) 265-hbtess than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sunday
and statutory holidays) before the time of the Megtor any adjournment thereof. A person appdinte
as proxy holder need not be a shareholder of tmpdZation. Shareholders can also vote online at
http://www.oympiatrust.com/proxy.

Only shareholders of record as at the close oflegsion January 21, 2011 (the "Record Date") are
entitled to receive notice of the Meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE USE OF THE MAIL TO TRANSMIT
PROXIES IS AT EACH SHAREHOLDER'S RISK.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, this28ay of January, 2011.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
“Gavin McMillar’
Gavin McMillan

President



DIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.
MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR
(Unless otherwise stated, information contained hein is given as of January 28, 2011)
INFORMATION REGARDING PROXIES AND VOTING AT THE MEE TING
Solicitation of Proxies

This Management Proxy Circular is furnished in ation with the solicitation of proxies by the
management of Digifonica International Inc. (theofforation”) for use at the Annual and Special
Meeting of the holders (the "Shareholders") of canrehares ("Common Shares") of the Corporation to
be held at the Days Inn, 921 West Georgia Stkéacouver, British Columbia, V6B 1M2 on Friday
February 25, 2011 at 11:00 a.m. (Vancouver timie¢ (MMeeting"), for the purposes set forth in the
Notice of Annual and Special Meeting (the "Noticacompanying this Management Proxy Circular.
Solicitation of proxies will be primarily by maihut may also be undertaken by way of telephone,
facsimile or oral communication by the directorfficers and regular employees of the Corporatiomoa
additional compensation. Costs associated with dbkcitation of proxies will be borne by the
Corporation.

Appointment of Proxyholders

Accompanying this Management Proxy Circular is astrument of proxy for use at the Meeting.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meetingeison and wish to be represented by proxy are
required to date and sign the enclosed instrumieptaxy and return it in the enclosed return enpelo

All properly executed instruments of proxy for Shaeholders must be mailed so as to reach or be
deposited at the offices of Olympia Trust Company taSuite 2300, 125 - 9th Avenue S.E., Calgary,
Alberta T2G 0P6 not later than 48 hours (excludingSaturdays, Sundays and statutory holidays in
the Province of Alberta) prior to the time set forthe Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Proxies
can also be faxed to (403) 265-1455. Shareholdersanc also vote online at
http://www.olympiatrust.com/proxy.

The persons designated in the instrument of praxy a director and the legal counsel for the
Corporation. A Shareholder has the right to appoint a person (wh need not be a Shareholder)
other than the persons designated in the accompamyg instrument of proxy, to attend at and
represent the Shareholder at the Meeting To exercise this right, a Shareholder shouldrinthe name

of the designated representative in the blank spemaded on the instrument of proxy and strike et
names of management's nominees. AlternativelyhareBolder may complete another appropriate
instrument of proxy.

Signing of Proxy

The instrument of proxy must be signed by the Si@der or the Shareholder's duly appointed attorney
authorized in writing or, if the Shareholder isaporation, under its corporate seal or by a duly
authorized officer or attorney of the Corporatiddn instrument of proxy signed by a person actisig a
attorney or in some other representative capaiciyuding a representative of a corporate Sharahpld



should indicate that person's capacity (followiigydr her signature) and should be accompanietidy t
appropriate instrument evidencing qualification anthority to act (unless such instrument has
previously been filed with the Corporation).

Revocability of Proxies

A Shareholder who has submitted an instrument afypmay revoke it at any time prior to the exercise
thereof. In addition to any manner permitted by, la proxy may be revoked by instrument in writing
executed by the Shareholder or by his or her dulthaized attorney or, if the Shareholder is a
corporation, under its corporate seal or executgdabduly authorized officer or attorney of the
corporation and deposited either: (i) at the regist office of the Corporation at any time up ta an
including the last business day preceding the dakeMeeting, or any adjournments thereof, at Wwhic
the instrument of proxy is to be used; or (ii) witle Chairman of the Meeting on the day of the linget

or any adjournment thereof. In addition, an insteat of proxy may be revoked: (i) by the Shareholde
personally attending the Meeting and voting theusges represented thereby or, if the Sharehdkler
corporation, by a duly authorized representativeéhef corporation attending at the Meeting and gptin
such securities; or (i) in any other manner pdediby law.

Voting of Proxies and Exercise of Discretion by Pnosholders

All Common Shares represented at the Meeting byartp executed proxies will be voted on any ballot
that may be called for and, where a choice witpeesto any matter to be acted upon has been mukcif
in the instrument of proxy, the Common Shares smreed by the instrument of proxy will be voted in
accordance with such instructions. The managedesignees named in the accompanying instrument of
proxy will vote or withhold from voting the Commdshares in respect of which they are appointed in
accordance with the direction of the Sharehold@oagting him or her on any ballot that may be dhlle
for at the Meeting.In the absence of such direction, such Common Sharavill be voted "FOR" the
proposed resolutions at the Meetings. The accompging instrument of proxy confers
discretionary authority upon the persons named thegin with respect to amendments of or
variations to the matters identified in the accompaying Notice and with respect to other matters
that may properly be brought before the Meeting. In the event that amendments or variations to
matters identified in the Notice are properly briougefore the Meeting or any further or other bestis
properly brought before the Meeting, it is the intien of the management designees to vote in
accordance with their best judgment on such matterdusiness. At the time of printing this
Management Proxy Circular, the management of thipdation knows of no such amendment, variation
or other matter to come before the Meeting othan the matters referred to in the accompanyingdsoti

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED ON

Except as disclosed in this Management Proxy Gircuione of the directors or senior officers of the
Corporation at any time since the beginning of @@poration's last financial year, nor any proposed
nominee for election as a director of the Corporgtnor any associate or affiliate of any of theefwing
persons, has any material interest, direct or éntirby way of beneficial ownership of securities o
otherwise in any matter to be acted on (other tharelection of directors).



VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING S ECURITIES
Voting of Common Shares — General

The record date for the determination of Sharehsldatitled to receive notice of and to vote at the
Meeting is January 21, 2011 (the "Record Date'hly@hareholders whose names are entered in the
Corporation's register of shareholders at the addfrisiness on the Record Date and holders of Gamm
Shares issued by the Corporation after the Recatd &nd prior to the Meeting will be entitled toewe
notice of and to vote at the Meeting, provided,tt@the extent that: (i) a registered Sharehdhaer
transferred the ownership of any Common Sharessulesit to the Record Date; and (ii) the transfefee
those Common Shares produces properly endorseel cbidificates, or otherwise establishes that he or
she owns the Common Shares and demands, notHatetan days before the Meeting, that his or her
name be included on the Shareholder list beford/tbeting, in which case the transferee shall bitleght
to vote his or her Common Shares at the Meeting.

Voting Shares

The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimitechber of Common Shares without par value and an
unlimited number of preferred shares. On the ReBate, of the Corporation's authorized Common
Shares, 38,771,975 Common Shares were issued tatdrming as fully paid and non-assessable. No
preferred shares were outstanding as of the Rdéxate

Common Shares

The holders of Common Shares are entitled to nati@nd to vote at all annual and special meetafgs
shareholders (except meetings at which only holdkesspecified class or series are entitled te)vand
are entitled to one vote per Common Share. Sutgjemty prior rights of the holders of preferrecrss
the holders of Common Shares are entitled to recgich dividends as the board of directors (theat@o
of Directors" or the "Board") declare and, uporuidption, to receive such assets of the Corpora&n
are distributable to holders of Common Shares.

Voting of Common Shares — Advice to Non-Registeradolders

Only registered holders of Common Shares, or thgops they appoint as their proxies, are permitied
attend and vote at the Meeting. However, in mases, Common Shares beneficially owned by a holder
(a "Non-Registered Holder") are registered either:

€) in the name of an intermediary (an "Intermediatigt the Non-Registered Holder deals with
in respect of the Common Shares. Intermediarigdadie banks, trust companies, securities
dealers or brokers, and trustees or administrafogs|f-administered RRSPs, RRIFs, RESPs
and similar plans; or

(b)  inthe name of a clearing agency (such asCdmadian Depository for Securities Limited or
"CDS").

In accordance with the requirements of Nationarimsent 54-101 of the Canadian Securities
Administrators, the Corporation has distributediespf the Notice, this Management Proxy Circulzat a



the instrument of proxy (collectively, the "MeetiMaterials") to the clearing agencies and Interrzeels
for onward distribution to Non-Registered Holders.

Intermediaries are required to forward meeting miete to Non-Registered Holders unless a Non
Registered Holder has waived the right to recehat Typically, Intermediaries will use a service
company (such as Broadridge Financial Solutiorts, (fBroadridge™)) to forward meeting materials to

Non-Registered Holders.
Generally, Non-Registered Holders who have not aaine right to receive meeting materials will:

(&) have received as part of the Meeting Mater&@lgoting instruction form which must be
completed, signed and delivered by the Non-Regidtdfolder in accordance with the
directions on the voting instruction form; votingstruction forms sent by Broadridge permit

the completion of the voting instruction form byetghone or through Internet based voting
procedures; or

(b) less typically, be given a proxy which hasally been signed by the Intermediary (typically
by a facsimile, stamped signature) which is restdcas to the number of Common Shares
beneficially owned by the Non-Registered Holder Wwhich is otherwise uncompleted. This
form of proxy need not be signed by the Non-RegisteHolder. In this case, the Non-
Registered Holder who wishes to submit a proxy khotherwise properly complete the form
of proxy and deposit it with Olympia Trust Compaatythe address referred to above.

The purpose of these procedures is to permit NagisRered Holders to direct the voting of the Common
Shares they beneficially own. Should a Non-Reggstéolder wish to attend and vote at the Meeting i
person (or have another person attend and voteebalfbof the Non-Registered Holder), the Non
Registered Holder should strike out the names efprsons named in the proxy and insert the Non
Registered Holder's (or such other person's) nantieei blank space provided or, in the case of mgot
instruction form, follow the corresponding instiocis on the form. In either case, Non-Registered
Holders should carefully follow the instructionstbéir Intermediaries and their service companies.

Only registered Shareholders have the right to kewa proxy. Non-Registered Holders who wish to
change their vote must in sufficient time in adwaraf the Meeting, arrange for their respective

Intermediaries to change their vote and if necgssaoke their proxy in accordance with the revimrat
procedures set above.

Principal Holders of Common Shares

To the knowledge of the directors and executiviceff of the Corporation, as of the record datethad
date hereof, no one shareholder owns, directlpdirectly, or exercises control or direction ov@rares
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attatctweall outstanding shares of the CorporationofAs
the record date CDS & CO , CDS Account of 25 Thel&sade, PO Box 1038 STN A, Toronto, Ontario
M5W 1G5 holds 19,117,741 shares which is 49.31%hefssued and outstanding shares.



STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Securities laws require that a “Statement of Execie Compensation” in accordance with Form 51-
102F6 be included in this information circular. Fam 51-102F6 prescribes the disclosure
requirements in respect of the compensation of exetive officers and directors of reporting issuers.

Form 51-102F6 provides that compensation disclosuremust be provided for the Chief Executive
Officer (or an individual who acted in a similar cgpacity) and the Chief Financial Officer of an

issuer and each of the three most highly compensdtexecutive officers whose total salary and
bonus exceed $150,000. Based on these requiremgeth® executive officers of the Corporation
whose disclosure is required under Form 51-102F6 arGavin McMillan, President (acting in a

similar capacity as Chief Executive Officer) and J# Bates, Chief Financial Officer. They are

collectively referred to as the “Named Executive Gifcers” or “NEOs”.

Compensation discussion and analysis
Philosophy

The Corporation believes that the experience, sskiihgagement, dedication and motivation of the
executive officers are important factors that mayeha direct effect on the Corporation’s perfornganc
and ability to provide growth of shareholder vallieis the view of the Corporation that the total
compensation should be established at a compet#iad to attract, retain and motivate the exe&utiv
officers to achieve its business objectives. Thentéon of executive officers, their talent, skibsd
experience is enabled through a competitive congiemssystem.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directithe “Compensation Committee”) which is
comprised entirely by independent directors is sesfble for establishing policies with respect e t
compensation of the executive officers of the Crapon. It has overall responsibilities for appray
and evaluating plans, policies and programs relate@xecutive compensation. The Compensation
Committee utilizes two primary compensation elermemtd such elements are aligned with certain goals
and objectives: (a) base salary and (b) long-taruite plans, including stock option grants. Eaclhaefse
compensation elements are discussed in detail below

Base salary

The Corporation provides NEOs and other executiitls a fixed base salary set at a level to allow th
Corporation to attract, motivate and retain highlyalified executives. The base salary for each NEO
determined on the basis of the following factoesponsibilities, experience, skill, performancegeptal

for growth, and the average salary levels in effectcomparable positions within the industry again
which the Corporation competes to attract supeeixecutive talent. The base salary level rewards
executive performance and their contribution to erporation. For the purposes of maintaining
competitive compensation, the Compensation Comeniteriodically refers to compensation surveys,
advice from compensation consultants and otherrnmditive sources. Salary levels are reviewed and
considered periodically as part of the Corporasgrerformance review process.



Long-term Incentive Compensation

Long-term incentives are provided through stockiamst The Corporation and the Compensation
Committee believe that stock-based compensatiagmslihe interests of the executive officers and
employees of the Corporation with that of the shalders. Since we operate in a highly competitive
market, we also believe that stock-based compeamsptovides the opportunity for a long-term retenti

of executive officers.

During the year ended December 31, 2009 no stotiarapwere granted.

Also, depending on the officer position, experierstélls and other factors, the Compensation Conesit
grants equity awards to executive officers upon roemcement of their employment with the
Corporation, with the level of award based on fextsimilar to those considered in connection with
awards to existing executive officers. The numbie€ommon Shares subject to each grant is set at a
level intended to create a meaningful opportunily $tock ownership and resulting compensation
opportunity based on the executive officer's currposition and other compensation factors. The
Compensation Committee also takes into accounthdingber of vested and unvested options held by the
executive officer in order to maintain the levedguired by the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan.

Stock options are granted in accordance with th®rfto Stock Exchange-Venture (“Exchange”) Rules,
at a fixed price per share which is not lower ttr@nweighted average price of the common shardiseon
Exchange during the five trading days prior to tae of grant of options. Stock options generally
become exercisable at the rate of 33% of the shpmegear and expire five to ten years from the ddt
grant. These terms are intended to encouragetésngretention of executive officers and motivdteit
continued performance. They will be able to get imax return from grants of options only if they
continue their employment with the Corporation fominimum period of three years and if the stock
price increases in value. The more the value oftbek is increased, the more return they get and a
result shareholder value increases.

Contracts with Named Executive Officers

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Catiparwas a party to employment agreements with
Gavin McMillan, President and Jeff Bates, Chiefdficial Officer. The annual salary for each NEO was
$125,500. Under the employment agreements eachiblEfitled to three months notice upon
termination without cause.

On January 15, 2009, the Corporation terminateaheloyment agreements with the NEOs who agreed
to waive their notice periods. The employment agrents were replaced with consultancy agreements.
Under the terms of Gavin McMillan’s consultancy egment he is paid $8,000 per month. Under the
terms of Jeff Bates’ consultancy agreement heit $% 000 per month.

However, during the year ended December 31, 200n@4cMillan was paid $74500 as consulting fee
and Jeff Bates was paid $36,000 as a consulting fee



Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concegnithe total compensation paid, during each ofabe
three financial years (as applicable), to the NaBesetutive Officers.

Name Year | Salary | Share- Option- Non-equity Pension | All other Total
and ($) based| based incentive plan value | Compen- | Compen-
Principal award¢ awards compensation ($) sation sation
Position ($) ($) ($) ($) ($)
Annual | Long-term
incentive | incentive
Plans (1) Plans (2)
Gavin 2009 | 74,500 | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil $35,000 | 109,500
McMillan (5)
President | 2008 | 125,500 | Nil 5,820 Nil Nil Nil 131,320
3) Nil
2007 | 32,877 | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 32,877
Nill
Jeff 2009 | 36,000 | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Bates Nil
Chief 2008 | 125,500 | Nil 6,984 Nil Nil Nil Nil 132,484
Financial | Nil
Officer 2007 | 77,918 | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 77,918
(4)

1. Perquisites and other personal benefits, sexziot property, received did not exceed the lesker
$50,000 and 10% of the total annual salary and $emtor the Named Executive Officers.

2. "Long Term Incentive Plan" means any plan whpobvides compensation intended to serve as
incentive for performance to occur over a periatgker than one financial year, but does not include
options or stock appreciation right plans or plEmompensation through restricted shares oricéstr
share units. The Corporation does not have ang t&mm incentive plans.

3. Gavin McMillan is President of the Corporatiardéhas performed the functions similar to the Chief
Executive Officer since October 26, 2007.

4. Jeff Bates was appointed as Chief Financialc®ffon May 8, 2007.

5.The Corporation issued 350,000 common sharestin@/cMillan to settle $35,000 of debt owed in
respect of consultancy services.



5. The fair value of stock options award at graatieds calculated consistently with the Corporasion
accounting for the fair value of stock option avgartl is calculated in accordance with section 3870
the CICA Handbook, using the BlackScholes-Mertotiomppricing model and is adjusted for forfeitures.
For the purposes of determining the accounting ms@eo be included in the financial statementdef t
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2008spect of the stock option awards, accounting fai
value expense is amortized over the vesting perfidkde award, which is normally 3 years. Pleaserref
the Corporation’s consolidated financial statememtte 11 (b) “Share Capital” for more details on
accounting for fair value of stock option awards.

6. Amounts shown are for the entire financial yesmded December 31, 2009 and includes all
remuneration paid during, or payable in respecttd, year, even if the NEO did not hold the positio
shown for the year.

The Corporation calculates the fair value of stopions on the date of granting in the ‘Option Bhse
Awards’ column using the Black-Scholes-Merton Medemathematical valuation model that ascribes a
value to a stock option based on a humber of vimsaincluding the exercise price of the optiohs, t
market price of the underlying shares on the daeption was granted, the term of the option and
assumptions with respect to the volatility of tmie@ of the underlying share and the risk-free odite
return. The Corporation used this model becausetite methodology recommended by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants in its Handbfakvaluing securities based compensation andnén |
with that recommendation, is the methodology usethb Corporation, and most Canadian publicly
traded companies, in valuing and reporting stodloop in its financial statements.

Calculating the value of stock options using thadBtScholes-Merton Model is very different from
simple ‘in-the-money’ value calculation. Stock apis that are well ‘out-of-the-money’ can still have
significant fair value based on a Black-Scholes{dteraluation. Accordingly, caution must be exexdis
in comparing grant date fair value amounts witthaasmpensation or an in-the-money option value
calculation. The value of the ‘in-the-money’ optazurrently held by each NEO and director (based on
share market price less option exercise pricegtisosth in the ‘Value of Unexercised in-the-money
Options’ column of the table in the section “Outsting Share and Option Based Awards” below.

Outstanding Share and Option-based Awards

The following table sets forth the all Share andi@pbased Awards outstanding for each Named
Executive Officer and Director at December 31, 2009



Share-based Awarc | Optior-based Awarc

Number of | Market or Number of | Option Option Value of
shares or payout value| securities exercise expiration unexercised
units of of share underlying | price date in the-
shares that | based unexercised money
have not awards that | options options
vested have not
vested

Named Executive Officers

Gavin Nil Nil 125,00( $1.0( June 2, 201 Nil

MacMillan

President

Jeff Bates Nil Nil 150,00( $1.0C June 2, 213 Nil

CFO

Directors

Colin Nil Nil 200,00t 1.1C June 2, 201 Nil

Tucker

Thomas Nil Nil 100,00C $1.1( June 2, 201 Nil

Sawyer

Peter Nil Nil 100,00C $1.1( June 2, 201 Nil

Legault

Gordon Nil Nil Nil

Blankstein

Emil Malak | Nil Nil Nil

Incentive plan Awards — value vested or earned dunig the year

The following table sets forth the value vesteg@aming by each Named Executive Officers and Direct
during the financial year ended December 31, 2000:

Name Optior-based Award- | Share-base-Awards | Non-equity incentive plau
Value vested during the Value vested during | compensation - Value
year the year earned during the year

Named Executive Officers

Gavin Nil Nil Nil

MacMillan

President

Jeff Bates Nil Nil Nil

Chief Financial Officer

Directors

Colin Tucke Nil Nil Nil

Thomas Sawy: Nil Nil Nil

Peter Legau Nil Nil Nil

Gordon Blankstei Nil Nil Nil

Emil Malak Nil Nil Nil




Notes:

1. The Option-based Awards are share options gidatthe NEOs on June 2, 2008. These share options
vest over a three year period with one-third vestin each of June 2, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

2. The Option-based Awards are share options gtdatthe Directors on June 2, 2008 vested
immediately.

3. No options were granted or exercised in 2009.
Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilitts and Employment Contracts

Please refer to the earlier section of this infdramacircular titled “Contracts with Named Execwiv
Officers”. There are no compensatory plans, cotdrac arrangements with any Named Executive
Officer (including payments to be received from @arporation or any subsidiary), which result oH wi
result from the resignation, retirement or any oteemination of employment of such Named Executive
Officer or from a change of control of the Corpaator any subsidiary thereof or any change in such
Named Executive Officer's responsibilities follogria change in control, where in respect of the Nhme
Executive officer the value of such compensatioteeds $100,000.

Compensation of Directors

Other than stock options to purchase shares dCtinporation which are granted to the Corporation’s
directors from time to time the Corporation doeshave any arrangements, other than that disclosed
below, pursuant to which directors are directlyindirectly remunerated by the Corporation, forithe
services in their capacities as directors, constdtar experts.

Pursuant to a Consulting Agreement dated Octob20d7, Dr. Colin Tucker, Chairman and director of
the Corporation, provides consulting services eéoQorporation. The remuneration payable under the
agreement is GBP£3,333.33 per month. The Corporatosed a non-brokered private placement on
February 7, 2008. Legault Investment Counsel lacompany controlled by Peter Legault, Director of
the Corporation) was paid $101,738 in respectrafdi’s fees for this placement. TSX Venture Excleang
approval was obtained.

The following table discloses the compensation pdiigctly or indirectly, by or on behalf of the
Corporation during the financial year ended Decartie 2009 to its directors:

Name Fees Share Option | Non-equity | Pensior | All other Total
earned | awards | based incentive value compensation Compensation
$ awards | plan $

5) compensatior

Gavin 74,500 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 74,500

McMillan (1)

Colin 70,865 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 70,865

Tucker (1) | (2)

Gordon Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Blankstein

Emil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Malak
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Thomas E. | 7,635.46 | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 7,635.46
Sawyer 3)

Peter 35,000 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 35,000
Legault 3)

Notes:

1. Gavin McMillan was paid $74,500 for consultancyszes provided to the Corporation during 2009.

2. Colin Tucker was paid $70,865 for consultancy sewiprovided to the Corporation during 2009.

3. Thomas Sawyer was paid $7,635.46 for consultancyices provided to the Corporation during

2009.

4. Peter Legault was paid $35,000 for consultancyises\provided to the Corporation during 2009.

5. The fair value of stock options award at graatieds calculated consistently with the Corporasion
accounting for the fair value of stock option avgartl is calculated in accordance with section 3870

the CICA Handbook, using the BlackScholes-Mertotiomppricing model and is adjusted for forfeitures.

For the purposes of determining the accounting es@eo be included in the financial statementdef t

Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2008spect of the stock option awards, accounting fai

value expense is amortized over the vesting parfdde award, which is normally 3 years.

Please refer to the Corporation’s consolidatednfiied statements note 12 (c) “Share Capital” foreno
details on accounting for fair value of stock optawards.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COM PENSATION PLANS

The following table sets forth securities of ther@wation that are authorized for issuance undeiteq
compensation plans as at the end of the Corpotstimost recently completed financial year.

Plan category

Number of secrities to
be issued upon exercis
of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(@)

Weightec-average

£ exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(b)

Number of securitie
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities in column (a)

(c) (1)

Equity compensatio
plans previously
approved by security
holders

690,00(

$1.0¢

Nil

Equity compensatio
plans not

approved by security
holders

Nil

Nil

Total

690,00(

$1.0¢

Nil
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Notes: The aggregate number of Common Shares #nabmreserved for issuance under the Plan shall
not exceed 10% of the Corporation’s issued andandéng shares.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

None of the directors and officers of the Corpamtany proposed management nominee for election as
a director of the Corporation or any associatengfdirector, officer or proposed management nomisee
or has been indebted to the Corporation at any dinneg the last completed financial year.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIO NS

Except as disclosed in this Management Proxy Girculone of the informed persons of the Corporation
(as defined in National Instrument 51-102), nor @angposed nominee for election as a director of the
Corporation, nor any person who beneficially owdiggctly or indirectly, shares carrying more th&@dd

of the voting rights attached to the issued shaféke Corporation, nor any associate or affiliatehe
foregoing persons has any material interest, doeatdirect, in any transaction since the commenrerd

of the Corporation's most recently completed firi@ngear or in any proposed transaction which, in
either case, has or will materially affect the Gwagtion and none of such persons has any material
interest in any transaction proposed to be undentddy the Corporation that will materially affetiet
Corporation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in this Information Circulie Corporation does not have in place any managemen
contracts between the Corporation and any directoeosficers and there are no management functsbns
the Corporation that are to any substantial degpegformed by a person or company other than the
directors or officers (or private companies coméil by them, either directly or indirectly) of the
Corporation.

The Corporation has consultancy contracts in pleite Gavin McMillan, President of the Corporation,
Dr. Colin Tucker, Chairman and Director of the Gmgtion, and Jeff Bates, Chief Financial Officer of
the Corporation. All consultancy contracts havetice period of up to three months.

Audit Committee

Form 52-110F2 containing information on the Auditn@nittee can be viewed in its entirety as Appendix
"B" to the Corporations’ Management Informationd@iar dated October 27, 2009 at www.sedar.com.

Corporate Governance Disclosure

Form 58-101F2 containing information on the Corpiords Corporate Governance can be viewed in its
entirety as Appendix "C" to the Corporations’ Maeaggent Information Circular dated October 27, 2009
at www.sedar.com.
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PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Financial Statements

The audited financial statements of the Corporafamthe year ended December 31, 2009 and the
Auditors' Reports thereon accompanying this ManageniProxy Circular will be placed before the
Shareholders at the Meeting for their considerati8hareholders who wish to receive interim finahci
statements are encouraged to send the encloseazk,niti the addressed envelope to Olympia Trust
Company. No formal action will be taken at the Niegto approve the financial statements, which have
been approved by the Board of Directors of the @@fion in accordance with applicable corporate and
securities legislation. Any questions regarding fimancial statements may be brought forward at th
Meeting.

Election of Directors

The term of office of each of the present directexpires at the Meeting. Management of the
Corporation proposes to nominate the persons néelegy for election as directors of the Corporatn
the Meeting to serve until the next annual meetihghe Shareholders of the Corporation, unless his
office is earlier vacated. All of the nominees atgrently members of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation.

Approval of the election of directors will requittee affirmative votes of the holders of not lesathalf

of the votes cast in respect thereof by Shareh®lg@sent in person or by proxy at the Meetinglesmn
otherwise directed, the management designees niantieel accompanying instrument of proxy intend to
vote in favour of the election, as directors, & ttominees whose names are set forth below. lavitet
that prior to the Meeting, any vacancies occurhendlate of nominees submitted herewith, it isndesl
that discretionary authority will be granted toergiroxies solicited by or on behalf of management f
the election of any other person or persons astdire Management is not currently aware thatsarch
nominees would not be willing to serve as diredtetected.
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The following information concerning the proposexininees has been furnished by each of them:

Name, Province or

State & Country of Voting
Residence & Present Securities
Position with the Principal Occupation or Employment for the LasteFiears Director | Beneficially
Corporation .
since Owned

Thomas E. Sawyer Dr. Sawyer is the President of Sawyer Technologig3. Dr. May 8, | 100,00C
Utah, USA Sawyer is a principal, innovator and entrepreneihé 2007
Director telecommunications and high
Q) @ technology industries. Dr. Sawyer has served a<thief

Executive Officer in a number of start-ups inclgiNACT

Telecommunications, SAGE

Analytics International Inc. and Wicat Systems liiar. Sawyer

has experience taking high technology companietiqabd has

raised hundreds

of millions of dollars in funding. He has communielations

experience in the USA at a local, state and natiewal

including service as a senior

advisor to three US presidents — Nixon, Ford anaigaa. Dr.

Sawyer has a PhD in Management from Walden Uniyeasid a

PhD in Clinical Psychology from Florida State Ueisity. Dr.

Sawyer is current a Director on Chief Consolida#ding

Company.
Emil Malak President of Bellagio Properties Inc. (property eestaurant May 8, | 2,592,50(C
Vancouver, BC, company), and 2007
Canada Chairman of Albonia Innovative Technologies Limitefr.
Director Malak is a multifaceted entrepreneur and busingssidive with
Q) @ experience in the real estate

and development, hospitality, mining, oil/gas aechinology

industries.

Sept 1,000,000

Colin Tucker Dr. Colin Tucker has an exemplary track recordabfi@avement, 27,
London, UK corporate leadership, and guidance in the Commtioita 2007

Chairman and Directo

1 @)

Industry including leading "3 UK" in the developmemd
deployment of the first 3G mobile network in the

UK 2003, prompting the Financial Times to list Ducker as
one of the 8 key people to know in the Telecommations
sector. Dr. Tucker has also served as an exeatitigetor to the
board of Orange Plc, and as Chief Operating

Officer of International Operations where he habthe
development and continued management of the Oaltge
international brand and operations in countriehsFrance,
Germany, Belgium and Switzerland. Dr. Tucker

currently also sits as a non-executive directothenBoard of
Monitise Plc., an extensive and commercially susftgsnobile
banking and payments service.

Notes:

1. Member of the Audit Committee.
2. Member of the Compensation Committee.
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Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies
Other than as disclosed below, no director or pseddalirector of the Corporation is, or has beehiwit

the past ten years, a director, chief executivieaffor chief financial officer of any other compatihat,
while such person was acting in that capacity:

® was the subject to an order that was issudel tve director or proposed director was actinthe
capacity as director, chief executive officer oietlinancial officer; or

(i) was subject to an order that was issued affierdirector or proposed director ceased to be a
director, chief executive officer or chief finanlotdficer and which resulted from an event that
occurred while that person was acting in the capasi director, chief executive officer or chief
financial officer.

Other than as disclosed below, no director or pgedalirector of the Corporation is, or has beehiwit
the past ten years, a director or executive offddemy other company that, while such person wiag
in that capacity, or within a year of that indivadiceasing to act in that capacity, became bankmatie
a proposal under any legislation relating to baptay or insolvency or was subject to or institubeyy
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with cned@ohad a receiver, receiver manager or trustee
appointed to hold its assets.

Mr. Tucker was a Director of UIQ Technology Ltd (@), a private company incorporated in Sweden.
UIQ went into bankruptcy on January 5, 2009.

Individual Bankruptcies

No director or proposed director of the Corporai®or has, within the ten years prior to the deeeof,
become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legisleglating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become
subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangere compromise with creditors or had a receiver,
receiver manager or trustee appointed to holdtketa of that individual.

Penalties or Sanctions

No director or proposed director of the Corporatites been subject to any penalties or sanctions
imposed by a court relating to securities legistatir by a securities regulatory authority or hatered

into a settlement agreement with a securities e¢go} authority. No director or proposed direatbthe
Corporation has been subject to any other penaitiesanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body
that would likely be considered important to a ozeble security holder in deciding whether to fotea
proposed director

Conflicts of Interest

The directors and officers of the Corporation nfagm time to time, be involved with the businessl an
operations of other issuers, in which case a adndli interest may arise between their duties fisevb

and directors of the Corporation and as officer dirdctors of such other companies. Such conflicts
must be disclosed in accordance with, and are sutijesuch procedures and remedies, as applicable,
under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta).
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Appointment of Auditors

Unless otherwise directed, the management desigreaed in the accompanying instrument of proxy
intend to vote in favour of the appointment of HCBinamon Jang Willoughby & Company, as auditors
of the Corporation, to hold office until the closef the next annual meeting, at a remunerationeto b
determined by the Board of Directors of the Corpiora Approval of the appointment of the auditoid w
require the affirmative votes of the holders of fests than half of the votes cast in respect tHidrgo
Shareholders present in person or by proxy at thetig. Unless instructed otherwise, the manageme
designees in the accompanying Instrument of Pnatgnd to vote "FOR" the resolution.

Consolidation of issued and outstanding Shares

As at September 30, the Corporation has a workaqtal deficiency of $2,098,923. On December 31,
2009 the Corporation wrote down its property, emépt and deferred development costs to their
estimated recoverable amount of $nil. Managemeopgses to change the business of the Company
(“COB”) and its undertaking to a business not yetiedmined. The Corporation needs to raise money by
the sale of its share. Management proposes to hdasothe 38,771,975 issued common shares on a
basis of one new common share for up to ten conshares currently issued and outstandihg “New
Common Shares”). On a post-consolidated basis, the Corporationcigates that there will be
approximately 3,877,197 New Common Shares of thep@ation issued and outstanding, assuming a
consolidation ratio of 10 to 1.

The Board of Directors believes that consolidatimihthe Common Shares should enhance their
marketability as an investment and should facéitadditional financings to fund operations in thtfe.

No fractional New Common Shares will be issued essalt of the Share Consolidation. If, as a resflt
the Share Consolidation, the holder of New Commioar& would otherwise be entitled to a fractioa of
share, the number of New Common Shares issuatdedio shareholder shall be rounded down to the
nearest whole number. In addition, the exercigge@nd number of common shares of the Corporation
issuable upon the exercise of outstanding optisvarants and other convertible securities will be
proportionally adjusted upon the implementatiothef proposed share consolidation.

In connection with the Share Consolidation, thepBoation is proposing a name change and may also
seek a new stock trading symbol from the TSX Vanttxchange (the “Exchange”). The Corporation is
proposing to change its name to a name determigeithdo Board of Directors and acceptable to the
Exchange.

Notwithstanding shareholder approval, the Boardwéctors may, in their sole discretion, revoke the
resolution approving the change of corporate nanamatime prior to its implementation. Concurrgntl
management proposes to change the name of the @gmpa

Shareholders are asked to approve the followingigbeesolution which means a resolution passed by
majority of not less than 2/3 of the votes castthm shareholders present in person or by proxhet t
Meeting who voted in respect of that resolution.
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BE IT RESOLVED THAT a special resolution to change the name of theo@ation to a name
selected by the directors and accepted by the atmgyl authorities and to consolidate the 38,771,975
issued and outstanding shares on a ratio of one G8emmon Share for up to ten common shares
currently issued and outstanding, the final ratidoé determined at the sole discretion of thecttirs;

and that any one director or officer of the Cogtimn be and is hereby authorized and directedoto d
such things and to execute and deliver all suctiuments, deeds and documents as in his opinion may
be necessary or advisable in order to give eftetite foregoing resolutions be and are hereby appith

To be effective, such resolution must be passed bajority of the votes cast thereon by Sharehslder
present in person or by proxy at the Meeting. Unlastructed otherwise, the management designees in
the accompanying Instrument of Proxy intend to VB®R" the resolution.

1. Notwithstanding that this resolution has beely gassed by the shareholders of the Corporation,
without further resolution of shareholders, apptdsdereby given to the board of directors of the
Corporation, in their sole discretion, to revokes ttesolution at any time and to refrain from
implementing the share consolidation and name @&ang

2. Unless instructed otherwise, the managemengiess in the accompanying Instrument of Proxy
intend to vote "FOR" the resolution.

Change of Business and Undertaking of the Company

The Corporation has spent four years developingl® Vietwork and a number of partners sales and self
management tools. It was looking for Partnerssndthnology and / or to sell its Patents.

On February 1, 2009, the Company vacated its rengmhises. The Leasehold improvements and
Furniture & Fixtures were disposed of and writtemvd to Nil and a loss from disposition of property
and equipment of $48,917 was recognized in the mimeths ended September 30, 2009.

On December 31, 2009, the Company wrote down @pd?ty and equipment to its estimated recoverable
amount of $nil. The Company recognized a loss fdisposition of property of equipment of $290,752,
for a total loss from disposition of $339,669.

The only remaining asset of any value is the pateith a value of $381,179 which the Corporation
would like to sell.

Management plans to sell, transfer, license anerafbe dispose of the patents (“Disposition”) which

the sole undertaking of the Corporation (the “Utaléng”) and enter into a new business unrelatdati¢o
prior business which may be a change of busin€¥9B") or a reverse takeover (RTO) as defined by the
Exchange.

“Change of Businessor “COB” means a transaction or series of transactionshvhiill redirect an
Issuer’s resources and which changes the natutg lmfisiness, for example, through the acquisitiban
interest in another business which represents arraamount of the issuer’'s market value, assets o
operations, or which becomes the principal entsepof the issuer.

“Reverse Takeoveror “RTO” means a transaction or series of transactionsjwing an acquisition by
the Issuer or of the Issuer, and a securities ieguby an Issuer that results in:

17



(a) new Shareholders holding more than 50% of thstanding voting securities of the Issuer; and

(b) a Change of Control of the Issuer which meanswa person owns 20% of the Corporation’s shares.
The Exchange may deem a transaction to have rdsol@ Change of Control by aggregating the shares
of a vendor group and/or incoming management grbupdoes not include any transaction or series of
transactions whereby the newly issued securitiest@ibe issued to shareholders of an issuer lsted
TSX or another senior exchange under a formal tadkeloid made pursuant to Securities Laws.

A transaction or series of transactions may include acquisition of a business or assets, an
amalgamation, arrangement or other reorganization.

Shareholders are asked to approve the followingiapeesolution which means a resolution passed by
majority of not less than 2/3 of the votes casthgyshareholders present in person or by proxXyeat t
Meeting who voted in respect of that resolution.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT a special resolution to dispose of the Undertakiiniine Corporation and to
enter into a COB or RTO with a new business asiaéted by the directors be and is hereby approved.

To be effective, such resolution must be passeal fogjority of the votes cast thereon by Sharehslder
present in person or by proxy at the Meeting. Bmiastructed otherwise, the management designees i
the accompanying Instrument of Proxy intend to VB®R" the resolution.

1. Notwithstanding that this resolution has beety ghassed by the shareholders of the Corporation,
without further resolution of shareholders, apptagahereby given to the board of directors of the
Corporation, in their sole discretion, to revokés thesolution at any time and to refrain changihg t
Undertaking of the Corporation or entering into@ECor RTO.

2. Any one director or officer of the Corporatioa bnd is hereby authorized and directed to do such
things and to execute and deliver all such instntmjedeeds and documents as in his opinion may be
necessary or advisable in order to give effechéofbregoing resolutions."

3. Unless instructed otherwise, the managemenguiess in the accompanying Instrument of Proxy
intend to vote "FOR" the resolution.

Ratification and Re-Approval of Stock Option Plan

Pursuant to Policy 4.4 of the Exchange (the "P8Jiagyorporations that have a rolling stock optidarnp
reserving a maximum of 10% of the issued and outétg shares of the corporation must receive yearly
shareholder approval of the stock option plan. dihectors of the Corporation have approved thelSto
Option Plan in the form attached as Appendix "Athte Corporation’s Management Information Circular
dated October 27, 209 which can be viewed in itsetyg at www.sedar.com. The Exchange requires the
Stock Option Plan to be re-approved by the shadehslof the Corporation. Management of the
Corporation will place before the Meeting the fallog resolution relating to the re-approval of Steck
Option Plan:
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BE IT RESOLVED THAT :

1. the stock option plan of the Corporation, thHetext of which is set forth in Appendix "A" to ¢h
Management Proxy Circular of the Corporation d&etbber 27, 2009, as may be amended by the board
of directors as required by the applicable se@gitegulatory authorities or stock exchanges, riskdye
ratified, adopted and re-approved,;

2. the form of the Stock Option Plan may be amendedder to satisfy the requirements or requekts o
any regulatory authorities without requiring funttze@proval of the shareholders of the Corporation;

3. the shareholders of the Corporation hereby espyreuthorize the board of directors to revoke thi
resolution before it is acted upon without reqgrfarther approval of the shareholders in that mégand

4. Any one director or officer of the Corporatiom #nd is hereby authorized and directed to do such
things and to execute and deliver all such instnigjeleeds and documents as in his opinion may be
necessary or advisable in order to give effechéoforegoing resolutions."

The approval by Shareholders requires a favoratike af a majority of the Common Shares voted in
respect thereof at the Meeting. Options to purclzasamon Shares that were previously granted to
directors, officers and employees of the Corporatidll be deemed to be granted under the Stockddpti
Plan. Unless instructed otherwise, the managenesigigees in the accompanying Instrument of Proxy
intend to vote "FOR" the resolution.

Grant of New Stock Options to directors, officer, msiders and consultants

The Corporation proposes to grant stock optiontstdirectors, officer, insiders and consultantthie
ensuing year at on terms and prices acceptabletBxchange and in compliance with the Corporagion’
stock option plan. Management of the Corporatidhpléce before the Meeting the following resolutio
relating to the grant of new stock options.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT :

1. The Corporation may amend current outstandgtigpios and grant new option to officer, insiderd an
consultants in the ensuing year at on terms amgpedcceptable to the Exchange and in compliartbe wi
the Corporation’s stock option plan.

2. Any one director or officer of the Corporatiom &nd is hereby authorized and directed to do such
things and to execute and deliver all such instnimeleeds and documents as in his opinion may be
necessary or advisable in order to give effechéoforegoing resolutions."

The approval by Shareholders requires a favoratike af a majority of the Common Shares voted in
respect thereof at the Meeting. Unless instructbdrwiise, the management designees in the
accompanying Instrument of Proxy intend to vote REG@he resolution.
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OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this Information Circular, the @d of Directors and management know of no
amendment, variation or other matter to come bdfeMeeting other than the matters referred titnén
Notice of Meeting. However, if any other matteoperly comes before the Meeting, proxies in favafur
management nominees will be voted on such matt@cdordance with the best judgment of the person or
persons voting the proxy.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Corporatioiis available through the internet on the Canadian
System for Electronic Document Analysis and Re#&ie{SEDAR) which can be accessed at
www.sedar.com. Financial information on the Cogban is provided in the comparative financial
statements and management discussion and anafydie €orporation which can also be accessed at
www.sedar.com.

Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia this"gate of January, 2011.

Approved by the Board of Directors BIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“Gavin McMillar?

Gavin McMillan

President
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Form 52-109FV1
Certification of annual filings - venture issuer baic certificate
I, Gavin McMillan, President, (Chief Executive Qfir) of Digifonica International Inc. certify the

following:

1. Review:l have reviewed the AlF, if any, annual financi@tements and annual MD&A,
including, for greater certainty, all documents érfdrmation that are incorporated by reference
in the AIF (together, the “annual filings”) of Dignica International Inc. (the “issuer”) for the
financial year ended December 31, 2009.

2. No misrepresentationsBased on my knowledge, having exercised reasowiligence, the
annual filings do not contain any untrue statenoéat material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated or that is necessanyake a statement not misleading in light of the
circumstances under which it was made, for theopesovered by the annual filings.

3. Fair presentation:Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasouwdfildence, the annual
financial statements together with the other fir@rnoformation included in the annual filings
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash flows
of the issuer, as of the date of and for the perwésented in the annual filings.

Date: May 7, 2009
“Gavin McMillar?

Gavin McMillan
President (performing similar functions to the Gligecutive Officer

NOTE TO READER

In contrast to the certificate required for non4twea issuers under National Instrument 52-C@8tification of Disclosure in
Issuers’ Annual and Interim FilingdN|I 52-109), this Venture Issuer Basic Certificdtes not include representations relating to
the establishment and maintenance of disclosurealerand procedures (DC&P) and internal contr@rdinancial reporting
(ICFR), as defined in NI 52-109. In particular, detifying officers filing this certificate are hmaking any representations
relating to the establishment and maintenance of

i) controls and other procedures designed to peokégdsonable assurance that information requirbeé tisclosed by the
issuer in its annual filings, interim filings orhar reports filed or submitted under securitiesslagon is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienieds specified in securities legislation; and

ii) aprocess to provide reasonable assurancedieggthe reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancethétissuer's GAAP.

The issuer’s certifying officers are responsiblednsuring that processes are in place to proviee twith sufficient knowledge
to support the representations they are makinigisncertificate. Investors should be aware thiaéient limitations on the ability
of certifying officers of a venture issuer to desand implement on a cost effective basis DC&PI&@kR as defined in NI 52-
109 may result in additional risks to the qualigljability, transparency and timeliness of inteand annual filings and other
reports provided under securities legislation.




Form 52-109FV1
Certification of annual filings - venture issuer baic certificate

I, Jeff Bates, Chief Financial Officer of Digifonica International Inc. certify the following:

1. Review: | have reviewed the AIF, if any, annual financial statements and annual MD&A,
including, for greater certainty, all documents and information that are incorporated by
reference in the AIF (together, the “annual filings”) of Digifonica International Inc. (the “issuer”
for the financial year ended December 31, 2009.

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the
annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the
circumstances under which it was made, for the period covered by the annual filings.

3. Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the annual
financial statements together with the other financial information included in the annual filings
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the issuer, as of the date of and for the periods presented in the annual filings.

Date: May 7, 2009
“Jeff Bates”

Jeff Bates
Chief Financial Officer

NOTE TO READER

In contrast to the certificate required for non4wea issuers under National Instrument 52-C@8tification of Disclosure in
Issuers’ Annual and Interim FilingdNI 52-109), this Venture Issuer Basic Certificdtees not include representations relating
the establishment and maintenance of disclosurealerand procedures (DC&P) and internal contr@rdinancial reporting
(ICFR), as defined in NI 52-109. In particular, tetifying officers filing this certificate are hmaking any representations
relating to the establishment and maintenance of

i) controls and other procedures designed to pekégdsonable assurance that information requirbeé tisclosed by the
issuer in its annual filings, interim filings orhar reports filed or submitted under securitiesslagon is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pieneds specified in securities legislation; and

ii) aprocess to provide reasonable assurancedieggthe reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancethétissuer's GAAP.

The issuer’s certifying officers are responsiblednsuring that processes are in place to proviemtwith sufficient knowledge
to support the representations they are makinigisncertificate. Investors should be aware thiaéient limitations on the ability
of certifying officers of a venture issuer to desand implement on a cost effective basis DC&PI&@kR as defined in NI 52-
109 may result in additional risks to the qualigliability, transparency and timeliness of inteamd annual filings and other
reports provided under securities legislation.
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MEYERS NORRIS PENNY vwe

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Digifonica International Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Digifonica International Inc. as at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statement of operations, comprehensive loss
and deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and from the date of inception on
September 9, 2004 to December 31, 2009. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, and from the date of
inception on September 9, 2004 to December 31, 2009, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

MW I PMM"H ey

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada

April 29, 2010
BEST PP
X;;*Eﬁ?fﬁ P r a)s !MQ{ » CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS
a1t ELOBAL ALLIANCE OF 2300 — 1055 DUNSMUIR STREET VANCOUVER, BC V7X 111
REPORT ON BUSINESS INDERENDENTIEIRMS PH. (604) 685-8408 FAX (604) 685-8594 www.mnp.ca




DIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.

(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

December 31,

2009 2008
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,327 42,946
Other receivable 3,548 12,890
Prepaid expenses 3,242 70,239
Total current assets 11,117 126,075
Property and equipment, net (Note 5) - 467,702
Deferred development costs (Note 6) - 3,016,864
Patents (Note 7) 381,179 143,009
Total Assets 392,296 3,753,650
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Bank overdraft - 46,595
Accounts payable (Note 14) 601,826 845,272
Note payable in default (Note 8) 82,884 96,580
Accrued expenses (Note 14) 958,201 789,673
Convertible Promissory notes (Note 9) 150,000 147,418
Subscriptions payable (Note 10) 124,822 124,822
Loan from shareholders (Note 14) 151,182 210,105
Total current liabilities 2,068,915 2,260,465
Shareholders' equity:
Share Capital (Note 11) 11,622,658 10,745,975
Contributed surplus (Note 12) 560,372 546,778
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (13,859,649) (9,799,568)
Total shareholders' equity (1,676,619) 1,493,185
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 392,296 3,753,650

Nature of operations and going concern (Note 1)
Subsequent events (Note 17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:

"Colin Tucker"

Colin Tucker

"Emil Malak"

Emil Malak




DIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Loss, and Deficit

Year ended Inception
December 31, (Sep 9, 2004) to
2009 2008 Dec 31, 2009
Sales $ - - -
Cost of sales - - -
Expenses:
Accounting and audit 43,347 39,805 564,025
Salaries, wages, and commissions 70,689 746,985 3,120,231
Consulting fees (Note 14) 226,500 111,332 404,528
General and administrative 113,934 555,006 3,064,665
Legal 6,704 41,161 871,309
Rent 25,343 98,717 430,737
Amortization 128,033 222,717 1,108,923
Sales and marketing - 209,606 2,095,071
Research and development - - 284,073
Travel - 45,882 460,324
614,550 2,071,211 12,403,886
Loss from continuing operations before other income
(expense) and income taxes (614,550) (2,071,211) (12,403,886)
Other income (expense):
Loss from disposition of property and equipment (Note 5) (339,669) - (367,769)
Write-off of Deferred Development Costs (Note 6) (3,117,605) - (3,117,605)
Interest expense (36,730) (47,522) (268,892)
Interest income 330 765 5,906
Foreign currency gain 48,143 11,940 431,190
Gain on sale of subsidiary - - 805,133
Gain on settlement of liabilities - - 1,056,274
(3,445,531) (34,817) (1,455,763)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (4,060,081) (2,106,028) (13,859,649)
Income tax expense - - -
Net and Comprehensive loss (4,060,081) (2,106,028) (13,859,649)
Deficit, beginning of period (9,799,568) (7,693,540) -
Deficit, end of period $  (13,859,649) (9,799,568) (13,859,649)
Loss per share - basic and diluted $ (0.12) (0.07) (0.70)
Weighted average number of common shares
Basic and diluted 32,609,317 28,832,529 19,752,088

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




DIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended Inception
December 31, (Sep 9, 2004) to
2009 2008 Dec 31, 2009
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Loss from continuing operations $ (4,060,081) $ (2,106,028) $ (13,859,649)
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 128,033 222,717 1,108,923
Common shares issued for services rendered 139,247 - 145,268
Stock-based compensation expense - 56,746 56,746
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 339,669 - 367,769
Write-off of Deferred Development Costs 3,117,605 3,117,605
Flat fee on shareholders' loan 3,084 10,005 98,842
Gain on sale of subsidiary - - (805,133)
Gain on settlement of liabilities - - (1,056,274)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital (Note 15) (18,212) 664,768 2,436,864
(350,655) (1,151,792) (8,389,039)
Investments:
Purchase of property and equipment - (84,066) (1,477,387)
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment - - 695
Payable from purchase of property and equipment - - 28,210
Expenditures on deferred development costs (100,741) (590,585) (3,117,605)
Payable from deferrred development costs 8,519 146,697 155,216
Expenditures on patents (238,170) (43,855) (381,179)
Proceeds from sale of short term investments - 25,859 -
(330,392) (545,950) (4,792,050)
Financing:
Issuance of shares, net of issue costs 751,030 1,277,921 11,362,716
Subscription proceeds received in advance - - 350,000
Proceeds from shareholder loans 61,684 200,100 3,956,790
Proceeds from Convertible Promissory notes - 150,000 150,000
Proceeds from Subcriptions payable - 124,822 124,822
(Decrease) Increase in bank overdraft (46,595) 46,595 -
Repayment of loan (123,691) (206,038) (2,758,912)
642,428 1,593,400 13,185,416
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (38,619) (104,342) 4,327
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 42,946 147,288 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 4,327 % 42,946 $ 4,327

Supplementary cash flow information (Note 15)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

1. Nature of operations and going concern

Digifonica International Inc., formerly Initial Capital Inc., (“Digifonica” or the “Company”) was incorporated
under the Alberta Business Corporations Act on November 23, 2004 and was listed as a Capital Pool
Company on the TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange”) effective May 9, 2005. The Company completed
its Qualifying Transaction by acquiring a 50.02% controlling interest in Digifonica International Corp. (“DIC")
on May 8, 2007. The Company completed the acquisition of a further 49.5% of the issued and outstanding
shares of DIC on September 10, 2007. The Company currently trades on the Exchange under the symbol
“DIL".

In 2007, the Company completed an internal group reorganization with ownership by DIC in Digifonica
(International) Limited (organized in Gibraltar on September 9, 2004) , Digifonica Intellectual Properties
Limited (organized in Gibraltar on September 25, 2003) , Digifonica Canada Limited (organized in Canada on
July 29, 2004), Digifonica Enterprises Limited (organized in England and Wales on April 26, 2006) and
Shenzhen Sino-Can Inter-Communication Technology Limited (a joint venture company in China) being
transferred directly to the Company. Previously ownership by the Company was held indirectly through DIC.
Subsequent to the internal group reorganization DIC was sold to an arm’s length third party for proceeds of
$1,000.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course
of business. The Company has accumulated operating losses of $13,859,649, since its inception and had a
working capital deficiency of $2,057,798 at December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $2,134,390). The
Company is in default of covenants and repayment schedules with certain creditors. The continuation of the
Company is dependent upon the continuing support of creditors and stockholders, long-term financing,
ongoing product development, the successful implementation of a marketing program, market acceptance of
its products and achieving profitability. These consolidated financial statements do not give effect to any
adjustments to the amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities which might be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue its operations as a going concern.

2. Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”). All dollar amounts presented are in Canadian dollars.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Digifonica (International) Limited, Digifonica Intellectual Properties Limited, Digifonica Canada
Limited and Digifonica Enterprises Limited and its 49% interest in Shenzhen Sino-Can Inter-Communication
Technology Limited. All significant inter-company transactions have been eliminated.

3. Significant accounting policies
The Company’s significant accounting policies are as follow:
a) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and the
effect on the financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods may be significant.
Key areas of estimation, where management has made difficult, complex or subjective judgements,
often as a result of matters that are inherently uncertain, include certain accrued liabilities, useful
lives of depreciable assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives, estimates of volatility and




Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

3.

b)

d)

e)

f)

g9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

forfeiture rates for stock based compensation and the determination of the debt and equity
components for convertible debt instruments, recoverability of patent, calculation and recoverability
of future tax assets and liabilities. For business combinations, key areas of estimation and
judgement include the allocation of the purchase price.

Foreign currency translation

The Company'’s subsidiaries are considered fully integrated and are translated into Canadian dollars
using the temporal method. Under this method, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency have been translated into Canadian dollars at rates of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets, liabilities, revenue and expense items are translated at
rates prevailing when they were acquired or incurred. Exchange gains and losses arising on
translation of assets and liabilities are included in operations.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less at the time
of purchase to be cash equivalents. These cash equivalents primarily consist of funds on deposit
under various terms.

Deferred development costs

Research costs are expensed in the year incurred. The Company expenses development costs in
the year incurred, except when it is determined that the costs meet Canadian GAAP criteria for
deferral and amortization. The Company follows the guidance outlined in CICA Handbook Section
3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, to define and defer costs associated with software
development of the Company’s VolP system and applications. The deferred development costs will
be amortized on a straight-line basis over three years commencing when the software is available for
use.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Leasehold improvements

are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Equipment is amortized over its
estimated useful life, using the declining balance method as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computers 30%
Nodes 30%
Equipment 30%
Software 100%
Patents

The Company capitalizes patent application costs and amortizes on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the patent. The unamortized balance is charged to its operations if the
Company does not obtain approval or the patent is abandoned.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows resulting from its use
and eventual disposition. The impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.




Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

3.

h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Convertible Promissory note

The Company’s Convertible Promissory notes are considered to be a compound financial instrument
that contains both a debt and equity component. On issuance, the fair value of the debt component
is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows over the expected life using a market
rate of interest for a nonconvertible debt instrument with similar terms. The value is carried as debt
on an amortized cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the debt and equity components based on their respective carrying amount
when the instrument was issued.

Financial instruments
Fair value

CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial instruments — recognition and measurement, establishes
standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and derivatives,
including derivatives embedded in non-financial contracts. It requires financial assets and financial
liabilities, including derivatives, be measured at fair value on initial recognition and recorded on the
balance sheet. Measurement in subsequent periods is dependent on the classification of the
financial instrument:

o held for trading — measured at fair value with changes in those fair values recognized in
income

o available for sale — measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in
other comprehensive income; instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market are measured at cost

o held to maturity, loans and receivables, other financial liabilities — measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method of amortization

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, other receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, bank overdraft and subscriptions payable. Management believes that
the fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying values. The Company’'s
other financial instruments include notes payable in default, convertible promissory notes and loans
from shareholders.

The Company has classified all of its financial assets and liabilities as follows:

Financial Asset / Liability Classification / Subsequent Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents / Held for trading / Fair value

Other receivable / Held for trading / Fair value

Bank overdraft / Head for trading / Fair value

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities / Other liabilities / Amortized cost
Notes payable in default / Held for trading / Fair value

Loans from shareholders / Held for trading / Fair value

Convertible Promissory notes / Held for trading / Fair value

Subscriptions payable / Held for trading / Fair value

Held for trading financial assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments, are recorded
at fair value as determined by active market prices and valuation models, as appropriate. Valuation
models require the use of assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash
flows and discount rates. In determining these assumptions, the Company uses readily observable
market inputs. Changes in fair value of held for trading financial instruments are recorded in net




Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

3.

i)

)

k)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

earnings. Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are recorded initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments are recognized in net income with the exception
of derivatives designated in effective cash flow hedges.

The principal changes due to the adoption of these new standards are as follows:
a) Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation

These new standards implement changes to accounting standards for disclosure of financial
instruments. The disclosure requires information to be presented on all categories of financial
instruments, the risks associated with investments and how the company manages those risks (Note
18).

b) Capital Disclosure -

This new standard requires the company to disclose information that enables users of its financial
statements to evaluate the entity's objectives, policies and procedures for managing capital (Note
18).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, title passes to the
customer, typically upon delivery, and when collection of the fixed or determinable selling price is
reasonably assured.

Income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this
method future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between
financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured using
substantively enacted income tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities of a change in income tax
rates is recognized in operations in the period in which the change is substantively enacted. A
valuation allowance is recorded against any future income tax assets to the extent that there is
uncertainty regarding utilization of future tax assets.

Loss per share

The treasury stock method of calculating diluted per share amounts is used whereby any proceeds
from the exercise of in-the-money stock options or warrants are assumed to be used to purchase, for
cancellation, common shares of the Company at the average market price during the period. Basic
loss per share is computed by dividing net losses by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted per share amounts reflect the potential dilution that
could occur if stock options or warrants to purchase common shares were exercised and converted
to common shares. Anti-dilutive options and warrants are not included in the calculation.

10



Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

3.

m)

p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Stock options

Under the Company’s stock option plan described in Note 10 (c), options to purchase common
shares are granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants at current market prices. Stock-
based compensation expense is recorded in the statement of loss and deficit for all options granted
with a corresponding increase recorded as contributed surplus. Compensation expense is based on
the estimated fair values at the time of the grant and the expense is recognized over the estimated
vesting period. Upon the exercise of the stock options, consideration paid together with the amount
previously recognized in contributed surplus is recorded as an increase in share capital. In the event
that vested options expire, previously recognized compensation expense associated with such stock
options is not reversed. In the event that vested options are cancelled, previously recognized
compensation expense associated with such stock options is reduced.

Comprehensive income

CICA Handbook Section 1530, Comprehensive income, introduces comprehensive income, which
consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income represents
changes in shareholders’ equity during a period arising from unrealized foreign currency translation
gains or losses of self sustaining foreign operations, unrealized gains and losses on financial assets
classified as available for sale, and changes in the fair value of the effective portion of cash flow
hedging instruments. The components of comprehensive income are disclosed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The Company does not have any items that should be
included in other comprehensive income.

Hedges

CICA Handbook Section 3865, hedges, specifies the criteria that must be satisfied for the application
of hedge accounting. The Company does not engage in hedging practices.

Changes in accounting policies

During the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company adopted the following new or revised
Canadian accounting standards. Prior periods have not been restated. The adoption of these
policies had no impact on the opening deficit.

Financial instruments - reclassification of financial assets

In October 2008, the AcSB issued amendments to its standards dealing with reclassification of
financial assets in response to similar amendments made by the International Accounting Standards
Board in the context of the current financial market turmoil. The amendments allow reclassification of
financial assets out of the held-for-trading category (measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognized immediately in net income) into the available-for-sale or held-to-maturity categories,
in "rare circumstances." The latter two categories are subject to impairment testing, but
income statement charges for impairment are recognized when impairment is considered
"other than temporary."” The financial assets that can be reclassified exclude derivatives and
financial assets an entity has elected to include in the held-for-trading category. Assets qualifying for
reclassification are mainly debt and equity investments that were originally classified as held for
trading because they were acquired for the purpose of near-term sale. The amendments apply to
reclassifications made or after July 1, 2008. The Company did not reclassify any financial assets in
2010.

11



Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

4.

b)

d)

5.

Changes in accounting policies
Going Concern

In June 2007, the CICA approved amendments to Handbook Section 1400 “General Standards
for Financial Statement Presentation”. The standard outlines specific requirements for assessing
and disclosing an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Although the revised standard is
not expected to impact the Company’s net earnings or financial position, there may be different
and additional disclosure surrounding the Company’s going concern disclosure. Please refer to Note
1 for the company’s going concern assessment.

Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible assets

In February 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which replaces
Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. This new section provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets. The new
Section specifically excludes mining activities related to prospecting, acquisition of mineral rights,
exploration, drilling and mineral development from being considered as intangible asset, as existing
Section 3061, Property, Plant and Equipment, contains standards for measurement, presentation and
disclosure of mining properties. Adoption of this standard did not have any effect on the Company’s
financial statements.

EIC—-173, Credit risk and the fair value of financial assets and Financial liabilities

In January 2009, the CICA issued EIC-173, Credit risk and the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The EIC provides guidance on how to take into account credit risk of an entity and
counterparty when determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
derivative instruments. This EIC applies to interim and annual financial statements related to fiscal
years beginning on or after January 1, 2009. Adoption of this EIC did not have any effect on the
Company’s financial statements.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following assets as of December 31, 2009:

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization Value

$ $ $

Leasehold improvements - - -
Furniture & fixtures - - -
Computers 132,792 (132,792) -
Nodes 445,035 (445,045) -
Equipment 579,644 (579,644) -
Software 82,983 (82,983) -

1,240,454 (1,240,454) -

12



Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

5. Property and equipment (continued)

Property and equipment consist of the following assets as of December 31, 2008:

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization Value

$ $ $

Leasehold improvements 172,376 (134,070) 38,306
Furniture & fixtures 25,713 (11,677) 14,036
Computers 132,791 (81,428) 51,363
Nodes 445,035 (279,664) 165,371
Equipment 579,644 (381,018) 198,626
Software 82,983 (82,983) -
1,438,542 (970,840) 467,702

Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $128,033 and $222,717
respectively.

On February 1, 2009, the Company vacated its rental premises. The Leasehold improvements and Furniture
& Fixtures were disposed of and written down to Nil and a loss from disposition of property and equipment of
$48,917 was recognized in the nine months ended September 30, 2009.

On December 31, 2009, the Company wrote down its Property and equipment to its estimated recoverable
amount of $nil. The Company recognized a loss from disposition of property of equipment of $290,752, for a
total loss from disposition of $339,669.

6. Deferred development costs

The Company has capitalized the cost of development related to wages, contractor fees and other related
costs for software design and application products of the Company’s VolIP system and applications. As at
December 31, 2009 the Company determined that the Deferred development costs were no longer
recoverable and the balance of $3,117,605 was written off to the income statement.

The amount of deferred development costs for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $100,741
and $590,585 respectively. The accumulated amount of deferred development costs as of December 31,
2008 was $nil (December 31, 2008: $3,016,864). Amortization expense for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 were nil.

7. Patents

The Corporation has several patent applications pending approval that relate directly to the process and
technology that run the Company’s current business platform. The carrying amounts are representative of
actual costs incurred to date in pursuing patent applications. $238,170 of patent application costs and legal
fees have been capitalized during the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $43,855).
Patents will be amortized over the remaining life of the patent commencing when the patents have been
granted. To date, none of the patents have been granted and therefore no amortization has been recorded.

8. Note payable in default

The Company has one note payable in default for $82,884 as at December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008:
$96,580). At December 31, 2009 and 2008 the one note in default is an unsecured promissory note dated
July 23, 2008 which was entered into by the Company with a supplier. The promissory note bears interest at
12% per annum on the unpaid principal.

13



Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

9. Convertible Promissory notes

On July 14, 2008, the Company issued $150,000 in convertible promissory notes to three shareholders and
one arms-length party. The notes bear interest at a rate of 10% per annum. The notes are convertible into
common shares of the Company at the election of the holder, at a price of $0.36 per Unit. Each Unit consists
of one common share of the Company and one non-transferable common share purchase warrant of the
Company. Each common share purchase warrant shall entitle the holder thereof to acquire one common
share of the Company at a price of $0.50 per common share on or before the day that is eighteen months
from the date of the note agreements. The notes are repayable at a date which is not more than ten (10)
days from the date of closing a private placement offering by the Company where the Company raises funds,
net of expenses of the offering, in excess of $1,000,000 (the “Private Placement”); or where the Private
Placement has not closed by September 30, 2008, within five (5) business days of demand at anytime
thereafter, unless otherwise converted at the terms outlined above. The notes are secured by a general
security agreement.

The Company has allocated $140,965 of the $150,000 proceeds to current liabilities based on the fair value
of similar debt instruments without an associated conversion option. The fair value of the conversion option
was estimated at approximately $9,035. This is reflected as an adjustment to Contributed surplus. An
accretion expense of $2,582 (December 31, 2008: $6,453) was recognized in the year ended December 31,
2009.

Subsequent to the year end, the Company issued 866,301 common shares at a deemed price of $0.10 per
common share to settle $86,630 in convertible promissory notes. TSX Venture Exchange approval was
obtained.

10. Subscriptions payable

In December, 2008, the Company received an advance of $124,822 from an arms length party. The terms of
the subscription agreement are yet to be finalized.

11. Share capital

a) Authorized

Unlimited number of common shares without nominal or par value.
Unlimited number of preferred shares issuable in series.

b) Common shares issued and fully paid
Number Amount

Balance - December 31, 2007 27,592,179 $ 9,130,490
Shares issued pursuant to private placement (Note 11 (b) (1)) 1,307,000 1,699,100
Share issue costs (Note 11 (b) (IV)) - (123,179)
Options exercised (Note 11 (c)) 104,000 52,000
Fair value of warrants issued allocated to contributed surplus (Note 11

(b) (1) - (12,436)
Balance — December 31, 2008 29,003,179 $ 10,745,975
Shares issued pursuant to private placement (Note 11 (b) (1)) 7,510,300 751,030
Fair value of warrants issued allocated to contributed surplus (Note 11

(b) (1) - (13,594)
Shares for debt (Note 11 (b) (lll) and (1V)) 1,392,465 139,247
Balance — December 31, 2009 37,905,944 $ 11,622,658

14



Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

11.

b)

11.

Share capital (continued)
Common shares issued and fully paid (continued)

On February 7, 2008 the Company closed a non-brokered Private Placement of units (“Units”). The
Company issued an aggregate of 1,307,000 Units at a price of $1.30 per Unit for gross proceeds of
$1,699,100. Each Unit consists of one common share (a "Common Share") of the Company and
one-half of one non-transferable common share purchase warrant (a "Warrant"), with each whole
Warrant entitling the holder thereof to acquire one Common Share at a price of $2.00 per Common
Share for a period of 12 months from the date of issuance and thereafter at a price of $2.80 per

Common Share until the date that is 24 months from the date of issuance. The Common Shares,
Warrants and Common Shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants are all subject to a four
month hold period expiring on June 8, 2008.

The fair value of the warrants issued as part of each Unit was determined using the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model and resulted in a value of $12,436 based on the following assumptions: risk-
free interest rate of 3.75%, expected term of 2 years, weighted average stock volatility of 35%, and
expected future dividends of nil per share.

A finder’s fee of $101,738 was paid in cash to a company controlled by a Director of the Company
and was approved by the TSX Venture Exchange.

On July 24, 2009 the Company closed a non-brokered Private Placement of units (“Units”). The
Company issued an aggregate of 7,510,300 Units at a price of $0.10 per Unit for gross proceeds of
$751,030. Each Unit consists of one common share (a "Common Share") of the Company and one-
half of one non-transferable common share purchase warrant (a "Warrant”), with each whole
Warrant entitling the holder thereof to acquire one Common Share at a price of $0.15 per Common
Share for a period of 12 months from the date of issuance and thereafter at a price of $0.25 per
Common Share until the date that is 24 months from the date of issuance.

The fair value of the warrants issued as part of each Unit was determined using the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model and resulted in a value of $13,594 based on the following assumptions: risk-
free interest rate of 1.29%, expected term of 2 years, weighted average stock volatility of 35%, and
expected future dividends of nil per share.

Share capital (continued)

On September 22, 2009, the Company issued 350,000 common shares to the President of the
Company to settle $35,000 of debt owed in respect of consultancy services provided to the
Company.

On October 19, 2009, the Company issued 1,042,465 common shares at $0.10 per share to seven
(7) creditors to settle $104,246 of payables.

Stock options

The Company has a stock option plan, administered by the Board of Directors, in which up to 10% of
the issued and outstanding common shares are reserved for issuance. Under the plan, the options
vest immediately and expire three years from date of grant. In May 2005, the Company granted
650,000 (130,000 post consolidation) options to certain directors, officers and employees of the
Company. The options are exercisable at $0.10 ($0.50 post consolidation) per share, vest
immediately and expire on May 3, 2008. On July 24, 2007, 26,000 (post consolidation) options were
exercised for gross proceeds of $13,000.
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11.

b)

Share capital (continued)
Stock options (continued)

On May 2, 2008 two Directors of the Company exercised 104,000 stock options at an exercise price
of $0.50 per common share. Gross proceeds of $52,000 were received by the Company.

On June 2, 2008 the Company granted a total of 1,348,816 stock options to directors, officers,
consultants and employees of the Company. 481,816 stock options were granted to Directors of the
Company at an exercise price of $1.10. These stock options vested immediately. 867,000 stock
options were granted to officers, consultants and employees of the Company at an exercise price of
$1.00 vesting over a three year period.

The fair value of the stock options granted to Directors was determined using the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model and resulted in a value of $17,562 based on the following assumptions: risk-
free interest rate of 2.89%, expected term of 3 years, weighted average stock volatility of 35%, and
expected future dividends of nil per share. The fair value of the stock options granted to officers,
consultants and employees was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model and
resulted in a value of $40,368 based on the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 2.89%,
expected term of 3 years, weighted average stock volatility of 35%, and expected future dividends of
nil per share.

On October 2, 2008, 81,816 stock options with an exercise price of $1.10 expired unexercised. In
November, 2008, 286,000 non-vested stock options with an exercise price of $1.00 expired.

The following table presents the changes in the number of options outstanding for the stock option
plan:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Weighted average Weighted average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
Balance, beginning of period 981,000 $ 1.04 304,000 $ 1.65
Options granted - - 1,348,816 1.04
Options exercised - - (104,000) 0.50
Options expired (291,000) 1.00 (567,816) 1.45
Balance, end of period 690,000 $ 1.06 981,000 $ 1.04

Options outstanding and exercisable

Number of Weighted average remaining Weighted average
Exercise Price options contractual life exercise price
$1.00 290,000 3.42 $ 1.00
$1.10 400,000 3.42 1.10
690,000 3.42 $ 1.06

At December 31, 2009, the weighted average remaining contractual life of the options was 3.42
years (December 31, 2008: 4.58 years).
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Digifonica International Inc.

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

11. Share capital (continued)
d) Escrowed shares

In November 2004, the Company issued 4,500,000 (900,000 post consolidation) common shares to
founders of the Company. The shares were issued at a price of $0.05 per share for total proceeds of
$225,000. The shares are held in escrow and released in increments over a three year period
commencing on May 8, 2007. As at December 31, 2009, 135,000 common shares remain in
Escrow.

The Company has 7,340,500 shares subject to a six year escrow period starting September 10,
2007 (5,872,400 common shares remaining in escrow as at December 31, 2009). The Company
has 9,342,731 shares subject to a three year escrow period starting May 8, 2007 (6,539,912
common shares remaining in escrow as at December 31, 2009).

e) Share purchase warrants

The exercise price and expiry date of the common share purchase warrants as at December 31,
2009 are as follows:

Number Exercise Price Expiry date

653,500 $2 to 2/7/09, $2.80 to 2/7/10 February 7, 2010
3,755,150 $0.15to 7/24/10, $0.25 to 7/24/11 July 24, 2011
4,408,650

During the year ended December 31, 2009, 1,007,172 (December 31, 2008: 1,205,209) share purchase
warrants expired unexercised. Subsequent to year end, 653,500 share purchase warrants expired
unexercised.

12. Contributed surplus

The following table summarizes the changes in contributed surplus:

Balance — December 31, 2007 468,561
Fair value of warrants issued (Note 11 (b) (IV)) 12,436
Reversal of Stock-based compensation expense (Note 11 (c)) (1,184)
Fair value of Stock options granted (Note 11 (c)) 57,930
Fair value of Convertible Promissory Note issued (Note 9) 9,035
Balance — December 31, 2008 $ 546,778
Fair value of warrants issued (Note 11 (b) (IV)) 13,594
Balance — December 31, 2009 $ 560,372
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

13. Income taxes

The following table reconciles the expected income tax payable (recovery) at the Canadian federal and
provincial statutory income tax rates to the amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of operations
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Net income (loss) before tax $ (4,060,081) $ (2,106,028)
Income tax rate 30.00% 31.50%
Expected income tax expense (recovery) at above rates $ (1,218,024) $ (663,399)
Increase (decrease) due to:
Impact of lower statutory rates on foreign subsidiaries 1,123 49,501
Non-deductible expenses 3,174 34,813
Effect of rate change 281,489 -
Expired non-capital losses 5771 32,881
Change in valuation allowance 926,467 546,204
Provision for income taxes $ - $ -

The potential benefit arising from operating losses has been recognized as a future tax asset. To the extent
that these benefits may not be realized, a valuation allowance is provided. The Canadian federal and
provincial statutory minimum tax rate was reduced to 28.5% subsequent to the year-end.

The following tables reflect future income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Future income tax assets (liabilities):

Non capital losses $ 2,051,218 $ 2,012,187
Share issue cost 69,703 111,679
Temporary differences of assets 1,228,801 299,387
Less valuation allowance (3,349,722) (2,423,254)

$ - $ -

The Company has non capital loss carryforwards expiring in the following years:

Total

2014 $ 78,938
2015 1,132,490
2026 1,630,051
2027 1,959,104
2028 1,322,492
2029 369,622

$ 6,492,697
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14. Related party transactions

The following related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

a) During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid consulting fees in the amount of
$224,000 to directors and officers, and companies owned by directors and officers of the Company
(2008 - $225,797).

b) During the year ended December 31, 2008, a finders fees relating to a private placement was paid to
a company controlled by a director in the amount of $101,738. No finders fees were paid for the
year ended December 31, 2009.

c) During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company issued 350,000 shares to an officer at a
deemed price of $0.10 per share to in settlement of consulting fees owing to him in the amount of
$35,000 (2008 - $nil).

Included in accounts payable is $35,210 payable to directors and officers of the Company. The amounts are
non-interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment.

Included in accrued expenses is $150,435 payable to a director of the Company (2008 - $88,520). This
amount is non-interest bearing and due on demand.

Included in loans from shareholders is $88,183 payable to a director of the Company (2008 - $147,106
payable to three directors or companies owned by directors). This amount is due on demand and is non-
interest bearing. A flat 5% fee was paid to the director in the amount of $3,084 (2008 - $10,005).

15. Supplementary cash flow information

Year ended Inception
December 31, (Sep 9, 2004) to
2009 2008 Dec 31, 2009
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Other receivable $ 9342 % 8625 % 1,121,209
Prepaid and other current assets 66,997 35,207 258,317
Accounts payable (251,965) 269,582 341,913
Accrued expenses 168,528 321,681 687,133
Note payable in default (13,696) 23,220 56,003
Convertible promissory notes 2,582 6,453 2,582
Due to other parties - - (65,500)
$ (18,212) $ 664,768 2,436,864
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 2199 % 3079 % 21,225
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Liabilities assumed, reverse merger $ - - $ 886,273
Common shares issued for services rendered - - 6,021
Shareholders' loan converted to common shares - - 1,145,165
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16. Comparative figures

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current
period.

17. Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year end, the Company issued 866,301 common shares at a deemed price of $0.10 per
common share to settle $86,630 in convertible promissory notes. TSX Venture Exchange approval was
obtained.

18. Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing its capital are:

I. to maintain a flexible capital structure which optimizes the cost of capital at acceptable risk while
providing an appropriate return to its shareholders;
Il. to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business;
lll. to safeguard the Company’s ability to obtain financing should the need arise; and
IV. to maintain financial flexibility in order to benefit from potential opportunities as they arise.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in accordance with the objectives
stated above, as well as responds to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. The Company monitors the return on capital, which is defined as total shareholders’
equity. There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

19. Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve
its strategic objectives for growth and shareholder returns. The Company's risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to market conditions and the Company's activities.

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to significant financial risks and the
Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks. Further
gquantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements. The Board of Directors has
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The Board has implemented and monitors compliance with risk management policies.

The principal financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below

Credit risk

A significant portion of the Company’s cash is held at one institution and as a result the Company is exposed
to the risks of that institution. The carrying amount of cash and short-term investment held for trading

represents the Company's maximum credit exposure. The Company minimizes its risk by ensuring that
funds are deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.
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19. Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management (continued)
Foreign exchange risk
The Company conducts its business in foreign currencies and as a result it is exposed to fluctuations in

foreign exchange rates. The Company’s current foreign currency risk is primarily with the U.S. dollar and
Great Britain pound (‘GBP’). Accounts exposed to foreign exchange risk as of December 31, 2009 are:

US$ Balance GBP Balance
Cash and cash equivalents $ 823 % 287
Other receivables - 707
Accounts payable (47,161) (451,412)
Notes payable in default (82,884) -
Total $ (129,222) $ (450,418)

The Company does not actively hedge its foreign denominated financial instruments.

Foreign currency exchange risk sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity analysis to a 10% strengthening in the US Dollar and
Great Britain Pound on foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
balance sheet date for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. For a 10% weakening of the US Dollar
against the Canadian Dollar, there would be an equal and opposite impact on net loss for the period.

Change in foreign exchange gain/(loss) resulting from currency fluctuations at December 31, 2009:

US$ Balance GBP Balance
Cash and cash equivalents $ 82 $ 29
Other receivables - 70
Accounts payable (4,716) (45,141)
Notes payable in default (8,288) -
Total $ (12,922) % (45,042)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is not able to meet its financial obligations as they become due or
can do so only at excessive cost. The Company manages its liquidity risk by continuously monitoring
forecasted and actual cash flows, as well as anticipated investing and financing activities.
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20. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

This Section details recent accounting pronouncements that impact these and future financial statements.

a) Business Combinations, Consolidated Financial Statements, Non-controlling Interests

In January 2009, the CICA issued Handbook Sections 1582, Business Combinations, (“Section 1582"),
1601, Consolidated Financial Statements, (“Section 1601") and 1602, Non-controlling Interests,
(“Section 1602") which replaces CICA Handbook Sections 1581, Business Combinations, and 1600,
Consolidated Financial Statements. Section 1582 establishes standards for the business combinations that
is equivalent to the business combination accounting standard under International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). Section 1582 is applicable for the Company’'s business combinations with acquisition
dates on or after January 1, 2011. Early adoption of this Section is permitted. Section 1601 together with
Section 1602 establishes standards for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. Section 1601 is
applicable for the Company’s interim and annual consolidated financial statements for its fiscal year
beginning January 1, 2011. Early adoption of this Section is permitted. The Company has not chosen to early
adopt any one of these Sections at the year end date.

b) International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) published a new strategic plan that will
significantly affect financial reporting requirements for Canadian companies. The AcSB strategic plan
outlines the convergence of Canadian GAAP with IFRS over an expected five year transitional period. In
February 2008 the AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeover date for publicly-listed companies to use
IFRS, replacing Canada’s own GAAP. The date is for interim and annual financial statements relating to
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The transition date of January 1, 2011 will require the
restatement for comparative purposes of amounts reported by the Company for the year ended December
31, 2010. While the Company has begun assessing the adoption of IFRS for 2011, the financial reporting
impact of the transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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DIGIFONICA INTERNATIONAL INC.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results for
Digifonica International Inc. (“Digifonica”, the "Company" or “DII”) should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2009. Unless
otherwise noted, the results herein have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”).

Additional information relating to the Company and its operations is available under the Company’s profile
on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and also from the Company’s website at www.digifionica.com.

All references are to Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

This MD&A is dated April 29, 2010 and incorporates all relevant information and considerations to that
date.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This MD&A may contain forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s expectations regarding
the future growth, results of operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities of the
Company. Forward-looking statements involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Potential risks and
uncertainties include, without limitation, the uncertainties inherent in the development stage of the
Company; requirement of additional funding; rapid developments in technology, including developments
by competitors; interest rate and foreign exchange fluctuations; market competition and trends;
dependence on key employees; and reliance on the Company’s business partners. These factors could
cause actual results and performance to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking
statements. Readers are cautioned against placing undue reliance on forward-looking statements. The
forward looking statements contained in this discussion are expressly qualified by this cautionary
statement. The Company does not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statements except as required by securities law.

COMPANY DESCRIPTION

Digifonica International Inc., formerly Initial Capital Inc., (“Digifonica” or the “Company”) was incorporated
under the Alberta Business Corporations Act on November 23, 2004 and was listed as a Capital Pool
Company on the TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange”) effective May 9, 2005. The Company
completed its Qualifying Transaction by acquiring a 50.02% controlling interest in Digifonica International
Corp. (“DIC”) on May 8, 2007. The Company completed the acquisition of a further 49.5% of the issued
and outstanding shares of DIC on September 10, 2007. The Company currently trades on the Exchange
under the symbol “DIL”.

In 2007, the Company completed an internal group reorganization with ownership by DIC in Digifonica
(International) Limited (organized in Gibraltar on September 9, 2004) , Digifonica Intellectual Properties
Limited (organized in Gibraltar on September 25, 2003) , Digifonica Canada Limited (organized in
Canada on July 29, 2004), Digifonica Enterprises Limited (organized in England and Wales on April 26,
2006) and Shenzhen Sino-Can Inter-Communication Technology Limited (a joint venture company in
China) being transferred directly to the Company. Previously ownership by the Company was held
indirectly through DIC. Subsequent to the internal group reorganization DIC was sold to an arm’s length
third party for proceeds of $1,000.




OVERALL PERFORMANCE / OUTLOOK

The Company has spent four years developing a VolP network and a number of partners sales and self
management tools. It is looking for Partners in its technology and / or to sell its Patents.

Digifonica's management team is well known in the telecommunications sector and has created a sales
strategy allowing it to focus on efforts with partners who have established brand identity, products and
services. Research supports that there are many opportunities ahead for VolP and Digifonica has
positioned itself well to be able to offer attractive services and products into this market.

SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table summarizes select financial information for the periods indicated:

Year ended Year ended Year ended Inception
Results of Operations December 31, December 31, December 31, (Sep 9, 2004) to
2009 2008 2007 Dec 31, 2009
Operating expenses $ 614,550 $ 2,071,211 $ 3,179,663 $ 12,403,886
Other income (expense) (3,445,531) (34,817) 994,385 (1,455,763)
Net earnings (loss) (4,060,081) (2,106,028) (2,185,278) (13,859,649)
Net earnings (loss) per share - basic and diluted (0.12) (0.07) (0.12) (0.70)
Financial Position As at December As at December As at December
31,2009 31,2008 31,2007
Total assets $ 392,296 $ 3,753,650 $ 3,431,894
Long term liabilities nil nil nil
Total liabilities 2,068,915 2,260,465 2,260,465
Shareholders' equity (deficit) (1,676,619) 1,493,185 1,493,185
Cash dividends declared nil nil nil

The operating expenses vary by year depending on the level of funding and working capital being
available to the Company at that time. The net loss recognized in the year ended December 31, 2009 is
higher than in the comparable period of 2008 as the Company wrote down its Deferred Development

costs to nil.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets out certain unaudited financial information for the past eight quarters:

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
2009 2009 2009 2009
Net profit (loss) $ (3,531,568) $ (115,357) $ (203,549) $ (209,607)
Weighted average
number of shares 34,991,680 34,590,433 29,003,179 29,003,179
Profit (loss) per share
- basic and diluted  $ (0.10) $ (0.01) $ (0.01) $ (0.01)
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
2008 2008 2008 2008
Net profit (loss) $ (349,791) (470,292) $ (646,371) $ (639,574)
Weighted average
number of shares 29,003,179 29,003,179 28,966,608 28,353,399
Profit (loss) per share
- basic and diluted  $ (0.01) (0.02) $ (0.02) $ (0.02)




The net profit (loss) vary quarter by quarter depending on the financial position and the Company’s ability
to fund product development. For Q4, 2009, the Company recognized a net profit of $105,138 or $0.01
per share, due to the write off of Deferred Development costs ($3,117,605) and a loss on disposition of
property and equipment of $290,753. The net loss before these write-downs was $123,120 or $0.01 per
share.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended December 31, 2008

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company incurred a loss of $4,060,0810or $0.12 per share,
compared to a loss of $2,106,028 or $0.07 per share for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $614,550 compared to $2,071,211 for
the year ended December 31, 2008.

The following table shows operating expenses by main category:

Year ended Inception

December 31, (Sep 9, 2004) to

2009 2008 Dec 31, 2009

Expenses:

Accounting and audit $ 43,347 $ 39,805 $ 564,025
Salaries, wages, and commissions 70,689 746,985 3,120,231
Consulting fees 226,500 111,332 404,528
General and administrative 113,934 555,006 3,064,665
Legal 6,704 41,161 871,309
Rent 25,343 98,717 430,737
Amortization 128,033 222,717 1,108,923
Sales and marketing - 209,606 2,095,071
Research and development - - 284,073
Travel - 45,882 460,324
$ 614,550 $ 2,071,211 $ 12,403,886

Accounting and audit

Accounting and audit expense was $43,805 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008:
$39,805). Accounting and audit expense is in line with the prior period.

Salaries, wages, and commissions

Salaries, wages and commissions consists of wages and benefits for management and operations staff,
excluding the sales and marketing and research and development teams. Salaries and wages were
$70,689 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $746,985). The decrease is
primarily due to a reduction in the number of employees during 2009 from an average of 17 employees in
2008 to 3 as at December 31, 2009.

Consulting fees

Consulting fees consists of amounts paid to consultants for services provided. Consulting fees were
$226,500 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $111,332). The increase is
primarily due to officers of the Company moving from employees to consultants in 2009.




General and administrative

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses consist primarily of contractors, co-location, broadband,
and telecommunication expenses. G&A expenses were $113,934 for the year ended December 31,
2009 (December 31, 2008: $555,006). In 2009, the number of contractors employed by the Company
decreased in line with the reduction in employees.

Legal

Legal expense was $6,704 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $41,161). The
Company incurred minimal legal expenses during 2009.

Rent

Rent expense was $25,343 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $98,717). The
rent expense is lower in the current year due to the Company vacating its premises in Q1, 2009.

Amortization
Amortization expense was $128,033 for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008:
$222,717). The decrease in amortization is due to the nature of the declining balance amortization

method used by the Company.

Sales and marketing

Included in sales and marketing (“S&M”) expenses are primarily wages, consulting and contractor fees.
S&M expenses were nil for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $209,606). During
the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company did not have any sales and marketing employees
(previously an average of three employees during 2008).

Research and Development

The Company is developing its VolP communication system and therefore defers the development costs
associated with this product when the recognition criteria for deferment is met.

Travel

Travel expense was nil for the year ended December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008: $45,882). The
Company incurred no travel expenses in 2009.

Other income (expense)

The Company recognized a write-down of Deferred Development costs of $3,117,605 in the current year.
The Company no longer meets the recognition criteria to allow the deferment of these expenses.

The Company has recognized a loss on disposition of property and equipment of $339,669 in the current
year. This includes the write-down of leasehold improvements on the Company’s vacation of its leased
premises in Q1, 2009.

Interest expense is included in the “other income (expense)” category. Interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2009 included nil (December 31, 2008: $10,005) for a 5% flat fee paid on
shareholder loans received during the period.

The Company recognized a foreign exchange gain of $48,143 for the year ended December 31, 2008
(December 31, 2008: foreign exchange gain of $11,940).




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three months ended December 31, 2009 compared to the three months ended December 31, 2008

For the three months ended December 31, 2009, the Company recognized a net loss of $3,531,568 or
$0.01 per share. For the three months ended December 31, 2008, the Company recognized a net loss of
$349,791 or $0.01 per share. The increase in net loss is due to the write-down of Deferred Development
costs of $3,117,605 and a loss on disposition of property and equipment of $290,753. The net loss
before these write-downs was $123,120 or $0.01 per share.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2009 were $134,932 compared to
$327,789 for the three months ended December 31, 2008. The operating expenses for the three months
ended December 31, 2009 are significantly lower in comparison to the three months ended December 31,
2008 due to a lower number average number of employees of three (3) for Q4, 2009, compared to eight
(8) for Q4, 2008. These expenses reductions are consistent with explanations provided in the
comparison of the year ended December 31, 2009 to the year ended December 31, 2008.

Other income (expense)

The Company recognized a write-down of Deferred Development costs of $3,117,605 in the three months
ended December 31, 2009. The Company no longer meets the recognition criteria to allow the deferment
of these expenses.

The Company has recognized a loss on disposition of property and equipment of $290,753 in the three
months ended December 31, 2009.

The Company recognized a foreign exchange gain of $19,923 for the three months ended December 31,
2009 (three months ended December 31, 2008: foreign exchange loss of $697).

FINANCIAL POSITION

At December 31, 2009, total assets employed by the Company were $392,296 (December 31, 2008:
$3,753,650). The decrease is primarily attributable to an write-down in deferred development costs of
$3,117,605. Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2009 were $4,327 compared to $42,946 as
at December 31, 2008.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had total liabilities of $2,068,915 compared to $2,260,465 as at
December 31, 2008. The decrease is primarily due to the settlement of $139,247 by way of common
share issuance.

Shareholders’ equity (deficit) was $(1,676,619) as of December 31, 2009 compared to $1,493,185 as at
December 31, 2008. The following table shows the changes to shareholders’ equity (deficit) for the year
ended December 31, 2009:

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 1,493,185
Private Placement, net of share issue costs 751,030
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2009 (4,060,081)
Shares for debt 139,247
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ (1,676,619)




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are equity offerings and loans from shareholders. The
Company’s principal uses of cash have been to finance working capital, service and repay loans, and
investing in developing proprietary VolP communication systems and filing patents internationally. The
Company is seeking to secure additional financing to ensure that the Company has sufficient cash and
working capital in order to meet its short-term and long-term objectives however, there is no assurance
that such additional financing will be secured.

Year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended December 31, 2008
Operating activities

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company used cash of $350,655 for operating activities,
primarily on salaries and wages, sales and marketing, general and administrative and other cash based
operating expenses. This compared to $1,151,792 for the year ended December 31, 2008.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company used cash of $18,212 to finance non-cash working
capital. This compared to cash provided of $664,768 for the year ended December 31, 2008.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $2,057,798 for a ratio of current
assets to liabilities of 0.01:1, compared to a working capital deficiency of $2,134,390 for a current ratio of
0.06:1 as at December 31, 2008. This significant increase in the working capital deficiency is due to an
decrease in current assets as the Company seeks to secure additional funding.

Investing and financing activities

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company invested $100,741 in deferred development
costs and nil in property and equipment compared to $590,585 and $84,066 respectively during the year
ended December 31, 2008.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company received cash of $812,714 on net issuance of
common shares, proceeds from loans, proceeds from Convertible Promissory notes and Subscriptions
payable. This compared to $1,752,843 in the same period in 2008. The Company used the cash to
repay shareholder loans of $123,691 in 2009 compared to $206,038 for the same period in 2008.

Three months ended December 31, 2009 compared to the three months ended December 31, 2008
Operating activities

For the three months ended December 31, 2009, the Company used cash of $46,384 for operating
activities, primarily on salaries and wages, sales and marketing, general and administrative and other
cash based operating expenses. This compared to $109,705 for the three months ended December 31,
2008.

For the three months ended December 31, 2009, the Company provided cash of $58,572 to finance non-
cash working capital. This compared to $182,247 of cash provided for the three months ended
December 31, 2008.

Investing and financing activities
During the three months ended December 31, 2009, the Company invested nil in deferred development

costs and nil in property and equipment compared to $88,891 and nil respectively during the three
months ended December 31, 2008.




For the three months ended December 31, 2009, the Company received cash of nil from proceeds from
loans. This compared to $26,392 received in the same period in 2008 from the sale of short term
investments and proceeds from loans.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The Company does not have any commitments or contractual obligations.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company does not have any special purpose entities nor is it a party to any off-balance sheet
arrangements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

The following related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

a) During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid consulting fees in the amount of
$224,000 to directors and officers, and companies owned by directors and officers of the
Company (2008 - $225,797).

b) During the year ended December 31, 2008, a finders fees relating to a private placement was
paid to a company controlled by a director in the amount of $101,738. No finders fees were paid
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

c) During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company issued 350,000 shares to an officer at
a deemed price of $0.10 per share to in settlement of consulting fees owing to him in the amount
of $35,000 (2008 - $nil).

Included in accounts payable is $35,210 payable to directors and officers of the Company. The amounts
are non-interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment.

Included in accrued expenses is $150,435 payable to a director of the Company (2008 - $88,520). This
amount is non-interest bearing and due on demand.

Included in loans from shareholders is $88,183 payable to a director of the Company (2008 - $147,106
payable to three directors or companies owned by directors). This amount is due on demand and is non-
interest bearing. A flat 5% fee was paid to the director in the amount of $3,084 (2008 - $10,005).




CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is contained
in Note 3 to the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. The
Company’s significant accounting policies are subject to estimates and key judgments about future
events, many of which are beyond management’s control. The Company believes the following are the
most critical accounting estimates used in the determination of its financial results:

Foreign currency translation

The Company’s subsidiaries are considered fully integrated and are translated into Canadian dollars
using the temporal method. Under this method, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency have been translated into Canadian dollars at rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary assets, liabilities, revenue and expense items are translated at rates prevailing when
they were acquired or incurred. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation of assets and liabilities
are included in operations.

Deferred development costs

Research costs are expensed in the year incurred. The Company expenses development costs in the
year incurred, except when it is determined that the costs meet Canadian GAAP criteria for deferral and
amortization. The Company follows the guidance outlined in CICA Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and
Intangible Assets, to define and defer costs associated with software development of the Company’s
VolIP system and applications. The deferred development costs will be amortized on a straight-line basis
over three years commencing when the software is available for use.

Patents

The Company capitalizes patent application costs and amortizes on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the patent. The unamortized balance is charged to its operations if the Company
does not obtain approval or the patent is abandoned.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, title passes to the customer,
typically upon delivery, and when collection of the fixed or determinable selling price is reasonably
assured.

Stock options

Under the Company’s stock option plan described in Note 10 (c) to the annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, options to purchase common shares are granted to
directors, officers, employees and consultants at current market prices. Stock-based compensation
expense is recorded in the statement of loss and deficit for all options granted with a corresponding
increase recorded as contributed surplus. Compensation expense is based on the estimated fair values
at the time of the grant and the expense is recognized over the estimated vesting period. Upon the
exercise of the stock options, consideration paid together with the amount previously recognized in
contributed surplus is recorded as an increase in share capital. In the event that vested options expire,
previously recognized compensation expense associated with such stock options is not reversed. In the
event that vested options are cancelled, previously recognized compensation expense associated with
such stock options is reduced.




CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company adopted the following new or revised Canadian
accounting standards. Prior periods have not been restated. The adoption of these policies had no
impact on the opening deficit.

Financial instruments - reclassification of financial assets

In October 2008, the AcSB issued amendments to its standards dealing with reclassification of
financial assets in response to similar amendments made by the International Accounting Standards
Board in the context of the current financial market turmoil. The amendments allow reclassification of
financial assets out of the held-for-trading category (measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognized immediately in net income) into the available-for-sale or held-to-maturity categories, in
"rare circumstances." The latter two categories are subject to impairment testing, but income
statement charges for impairment are recognized when impairment is considered "other than
temporary." The financial assets that can be reclassified exclude derivatives and financial assets an
entity has elected to include in the held-for-trading category. Assets qualifying for reclassification are
mainly debt and equity investments that were originally classified as held for trading because they were
acquired for the purpose of near-term sale. The amendments apply to reclassifications made or after
July 1, 2008. The Company did not reclassify any financial assets in 2010.

Going Concern

In June 2007, the CICA approved amendments to Handbook Section 1400 “General Standards for
Financial Statement Presentation”. The standard outlines specific requirements for assessing and
disclosing an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Although the revised standard is not
expected to impact the Company’s net earnings or financial position, there may be different and
additional disclosure surrounding the Company’s going concern disclosure. Please refer to Note 1 for the
company’s going concern assessment.

Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible assets

In February 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which replaces
Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. This new section provides guidance on the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets. The new
Section specifically excludes mining activities related to prospecting, acquisition of mineral rights,
exploration, drilling and mineral development from being considered as intangible asset, as existing
Section 3061, Property, Plant and Equipment, contains standards for measurement, presentation and
disclosure of mining properties. Adoption of this standard did not have any effect on the Company’s
financial statements.

EIC —-173, Credit risk and the fair value of financial assets and Financial liabilities

In January 2009, the CICA issued EIC-173, Credit risk and the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The EIC provides guidance on how to take into account credit risk of an entity and
counterparty when determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
derivative instruments. This EIC applies to interim and annual financial statements related to fiscal
years beginning on or after January 1, 2009. Adoption of this EIC did not have any effect on the
Company’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. The Company
mitigates these risks by fixing the interest rates on shareholder loans and monitoring the movement of
foreign exchange rates.




OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As at April 29, 2010, the Company had 38,772,245 common shares without nominal or par value and
690,000 stock options outstanding. The 690,000 stock options are each exercisable to acquire a
common share at a price ranging between $1.00 - $1.10 per common share and expire on June 2, 2012.

The Company has 3,755,150 common share purchase warrants outstanding. The common share
purchase warrants are each exercisable to acquire a common share at a price per common share of
$0.15 to July 24, 2010 and $0.25 to July 24, 2011.

Of the 38,772,245 common shares outstanding, 11,813,262 are held in escrow. The common shares
subject to escrow periods are summarized in the table below:

Total common Released from Common shares

Escrow period shares Escrow remaining in Escrow
Six year period starting September 10, 2007 7,340,500 2,202,150 5,138,350
Six year period starting May 8, 2007 9,342,731 2,802,819 6,539,912
Three year period starting May 8, 2007 900,000 765,000 135,000
17,583,231 5,769,969 11,813,262

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has incurred significant losses since inception. The continued operations of the Company
are dependent on its ability to generate future cash flow and obtain additional financing. The Company
has traditionally financed its cash requirements through the issuance of common shares. If the Company
is unable to generate cash from operations or obtain additional financing its ability to operate and grow
the business could be impeded.

The Company operates in the VolP industry which is subject to all the risks and hazards typically
associated with communication operations, including, but not limited to, costly instalments and
maintenance of nodes in various jurisdictions, and maintaining operating systems on a world wide basis.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The consolidated financial statements and Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of Digifonica
International Inc. (the “Company” or “Digifonica”) and all other information in this annual MD&A are the
responsibility of management and have been reviewed and approved by its Board of Directors.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles. The MD&A has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of securities regulators. The consolidated financial statements and MD&A include amounts
that are based on best estimates and judgments of the expected effects of current events and
transactions. Management has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements and MD&A are presented fairly in all material respects. Financial
information presented elsewhere in the annual report is consistent with that in the audited consolidated
financial statements. The Company’s President (performing similar functions to the Chief Executive
Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have designed disclosure controls and procedures, or have
caused them to be designed under their supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material
information related to the Company has been made known to them and has been properly disclosed in
the audited annual consolidated financial statements and MD&A. In compliance with National Instrument
52-109, the Company’s President and CFO have provided to the Canadian Securities Administrators a
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certification related to the Company’s annual disclosure documents, including the audited annual
consolidated financial statements and MD&A.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial
reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the audited annual consolidated
financial statements and MD&A. The Board of Directors carries out this responsibility principally through
its Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee
meets periodically with management, as well as with the external auditors, to review the audited annual
consolidated financial statements, the MD&A, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to discuss
internal controls over the financial reporting process, and to satisfy itself that each party is properly
discharging its responsibilities. The annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2009 have been audited by the Company’s auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee has
the duty to review the appropriateness of the accounting policies and significant estimates and judgments
underlying the audited consolidated financial statements as presented by management, and to review
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to the fees of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors for its consideration when it approves
the consolidated financial statements and MD&A for issuance to shareholders. Cinnamon Jang
Willoughby & Company, external auditors approved by the shareholders, meets periodically with the Audit
Committee to discuss audit activities, financial reporting matters and other related subjects. This report
and our audited annual consolidated financial statements were reviewed by the Company’s Audit
Committee on April 29, 2010 and approved by Digifonica’s Board of Directors on April 29, 2010.

TRANSITION TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In February 2008, the AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeover date for publicly listed companies to
use IFRS, replacing Canada’s own GAAP. The date is for interim and annual financial statements relating
to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011.

The transition date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement for comparative purposes of amounts
reported by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010.

To be prepared for the conversion to IFRS, the Company has put in place an implementation plan. The
Company has started the training phase and the evaluation of the impact which involved a high-level of
review of the differences between current GAAP and IFRS. In the coming months, the Company will be
reviewing the alternatives available on adoption; the Company will also, in the second phase of its plan,
prepare a detailed impact assessment. As the implications of the conversion are identified, the impacts on
the other key elements of our conversion plan will be assessed. These key elements include: accounting
policy changes, information technology changes, training requirements, internal control over financial
reporting and impacts on business activities.

The Company will continue to report on the key elements and timing of its IFRS implementation plan in its
MD&A'’s throughout fiscal year 2010.

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

The Company has a limited number of staff and therefore there is a weakness in internal controls relating
to segregation of duties; however management is satisfied that there are adequate compensating
controls. Management assessed the design effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as at December 31, 2009, and based on that assessment determined that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting design was effective.
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DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that all relevant
information is gathered and reported to senior management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, on a timely basis so that the appropriate decisions can be made regarding public
disclosure.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company conducted an evaluation of the
disclosure controls and procedures as required by National Instrument 52-109 issued by the Canadian
Securities Administrators. They concluded that as at December 31, 2009, the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures were effective to provider reasonable assurance that material information
regarding required disclosures was made known to them on a timely basis.
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